AERA

YUANHENG GAS

YUAN HENG GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
TCF AR R AR 2 )

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(REFEEMRIZERAT)

Ko OO




Contents B &%

Chairman Statement

ERRE
Management Discussion and Analysis of
the Group Financial Review

AEE 2 ERE N RIS EEE

4-9

Corporate Governance Report
EEERWME

10-25

Biographical Details of Directors

26-28 EEEELE

Directors’ Report

29-42 EERHEE

Independent Auditor’s Report

43-44 B BRS

45

46-48
49-50
51-52
53-170
171

172

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

A BRE R MR ERARE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BB ERER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REESEBREK

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
REBRERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARA MR

Financial Summary of Five Years

hFBMBHME

Corporate Information

RAEER



Chairman Statement
s FERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (the "Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the "Group”), | would like to present
the audited results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016
to the shareholders.

The continued downturn in the global oil and gas prices has not
only created immense competition between imported natural gas
players and PRC local producers of LNG and natural gas but also
challenging business environment for the domestic and global oil
and gas players. Coupled with the downward pressure on the PRC's
domestic economy and the weak energy demand in the industrial
sector the Group's LNG business had, during the year, faced hefty
challenges.

During the financial year, the Group recorded consolidated
turnover of approximately RMB6,841 million (2015: approximately
RMB6,440 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 6.2%.
The loss after tax of approximately RMB20 million (2015: profit of
approximately RMB33 million).

In spite of the challenging market condition, the Group has sought
and explored the expansion of its LNG downstream distribution
channels and network through proposed collaboration with
industry player(s) and/or state-owned enterprises; formulated
strategic cooperation with global renowned oil and gas supplier to
facilitate the trading business of the Group and sought to further
expand collaboration with quality end users of nature gas, which
is expected to make positive contribution to the business and
operations of the Group.

In recent years, PRC government has accelerated the pace of its
reform on the energy industrial structure and natural gas pricing.
Following with the price adjustments to the existing supplies of
non-residential natural gas, the consumption demand in the natural
gas market was improved. From a longer term perspective, the
energy market are expected to lead to a healthy and sustainable
growth of the natural gas industry in the PRC.
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Looking ahead, the Group will continue to seek and expand its
distribution network as well as seizing other business opportunities
to diversify the Group's business portfolio in order to enhance its
overall financial and business positions

On behalf of the board, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude
to our shareholders and business partners for their continuing
support. | would also like to express my appreciation to our
management team and all staff for their outstanding contributions
and hard work over the past year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Group results

For the year ended 31 March 2016 and at present, the Group has
been principally engaged in (i) trading of oil and gas products and
the provision of related consultancy services; and (ii) processing,
distribution, sales, trading and transportation of LNG and other
auxiliary operations and networks in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recorded
consolidated turnover of approximately RMB6,841 million
(2015: approximately RMB6,440 million) with loss after tax of
approximately RMB20 million (2015: profit of approximately RMB33
million). The Group's performance for the year ended 31 March
2016 were contributed mainly by the production and sales of LNG
and the trading of oil and gas business.

The Group's financial results were adversely affected as compared
to that for the corresponding period in 2015 is mainly due to supply
side driven factor and challenging market conditions (as further
elaborated under the sections headed “Production and sales of
LNG" and "Oil and gas transactions”).

Notwithstanding, the management is exploring avenues
in improving its profit margins, as well as seeking business
opportunities to diversify the Group's businesses and/or portfolio
with a view to improve its overall financial and operational
performance.

Production and sales of LNG

During the year, the Group produced approximately 329,809,000
cubic meters of LNG, representing a decrease of approximately
141,206,000 cubic meters or 30% compared with the last year. The
turnover from the sales of LNG business for the year ended 31
March 2016 was approximately RMB986 million representing an
decrease of approximately RMB354 million or 26.4% compared
with the last year, contributing approximately 14.4% of the total
turnover of the Group. Gross profit however, decreased by
approximately RMB141 million to approximately RMB18 million
(2015: approximately RMB159 million), gross profit margin fell from
approximately 11.9% to approximately 1.8%.
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The decline in the production of LNG and the gross profit margin
were mainly attributable to (1) the lower utilization of the Group's
LNG processing plants due to unscheduled facilities maintenance
resulted from change of gas sources by upstream supplier; and (2)
lower gross profit margin due to stiff market competition against
LNG, locally and internationally.

Notwithstanding the above, the management has (1) sought
and explored the expansion of its LNG downstream distribution
channel through proposed collaboration with industry player(s)
and/or state-owned enterprises; and (2) sought to further expand
collaboration with quality end users of natural gas, which is
expected to make positive contribution to the business and
operations of the Group.

Oil and gas transactions

During the year, the revenue arising from oil and gas transactions
increased to approximately RMB5,657 million from approximately
RMB4,820 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB837 million or 17.3% from the year ended 31 March 2015.
Meanwhile, gross profit increased to approximately RMB60
million from approximately RMB9 million, with gross profit margin
increased from approximately 0.18% to approximately 1.06%. As a
result of management effort in cost savings and wider/expanded
trading network. To strengthen the Group's trading business, the
management is seeking to formulate strategic cooperation with
globally-renowned oil and gas suppliers.

Given the volatility of oil prices and the nature of the oil trading
contracts, the management will continue to adopt cautionary steps
while seeking profitable trading opportunities.

Prospect

During the year, the Group’s business was affected by adverse
market conditions in the oil and gas industry as described in the
previous sections. It is expected that, for the year to come, the
global economy will remain on track of slow recovery, whilst the
economy of China, the Group's major market, will enter into a
"new normal” (¥ RE) state of moderate and sustainable economic
growth leading to steady growth in demand for oil and gas in

China.
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While oil and gas prices are expected to linger at low levels (as
compared with the prices before the decline since mid-2014),
research suggested that prices may have recovered from its trough
earlier this year and reversed the downward trend. As China’s 13th
5-Year Plan begins in 2016, the Chinese economy is expected to
enter into a period of structural adjustment. Amongst the changes,
the adjustment of energy consumption structure, and pollution
control measures/directives are expected to be the focus, driving
the development of the natural gas industry. The Group expects
that the reforms in the natural gas market (e.g. pricing) as well as
the call for replacement of coal in non-power sectors with natural
gas (as part of China’s 13th Five-Year Plan (2016-2020)) would be
conducive to the market environment, in which the Group operates.

The management is mindful of the market environment and will
continue to adopt cautionary steps in and implementing various
strategies to mitigate the adverse impact on the business arising
from challenges as in this market condition. Looking forward, the
Group will continue to develop its businesses in natural gas sector
and to explore new business opportunities in order to create value
for its shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

The Group's turnover for the year ended 31 March 2016 was
approximately RMB6,841 million (2015: approximately RMB6,440
million). The increase in turnover was mainly attributable to the
increase in revenue from oil and gas transactions which reported a
turnover of approximately RMB5,657 million during the year ended
31 March 2016 (2015: approximately RMB4,820 million).

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 was approximately
RMB106 million (2015: approximately RMB190 million). The
decrease in gross profit was primarily due to (1) higher production
cost for the production of LNG resulted from lower utilization of the
LNG processing plants due to unscheduled facilities maintenance
by upstream supplier; and (2) stiff market competition against
LNG locally and internationally. Accordingly, the Group's gross
profit margin for the year ended 31 March 2016 decreased from
approximately 3% (year ended 31 March 2015) to approximately 2%.
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Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses decreased from approximately
RMB26 million for the year ended 31 March 2015 to approximately
RMB10 million for the year ended 31 March 2016. The decrease in
distribution and selling expenses was in line with the Group's policy
that to minimize the distribution cost by shifting to customers.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended 31
March 2016 amounted to approximately RMB102 million (2015:
approximately RMB88 million), representing an increase of
approximately 15.9% as compared to the previous year. The
increase was due to the suspension of LNG production plant
resulted from change of gas sources from upstream supplier. In this
connection, part of the fixed production costs (i.e. labour salaries
and deprecation etc.) amounted to approximately RMB16 million
were treated as administrative expenses in the suspension period.

Finance Costs

The Group incurred finance costs of approximately RMB48 million
during the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: approximately RMB71
million), representing a decrease of approximately 31.3%. The
decrease was mainly due to the repayment of bank loan during the
year and decrease in the bank interest rate.

Income Expenses/Tax Credit

The Group is subjected to taxes in Hong Kong and the PRC due to
its business operations in these jurisdictions. For the year ended
31 March 2016, income tax expenses of the Group approximately
RMB14 million (2015: tax credit of approximately RMB3 million).
Notwithstanding the Group recorded loss after tax during the year
ended 31 March 2016, the reversal from tax credit to tax expenses
was due to one-off tax adjustment incurred in last year.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 March 2016, the Group maintained bank balances and
cash of approximately RMB61 million (2015: approximately RMB26
million).

The net current liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2016
were approximately RMB115 million representing a decrease
of approximately RMB221 million compared with the last year
(2015: approximately RMB336 million). The current ratio was
approximately 0.94 (2015: approximately 0.82).
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Notwithstanding the net current liabilities of the Group at 31 March
2016, the management are confident that the Group would have
adequate funds to meet its obligation, as and when they fall due,
having regard to the following:

(i)  the available long-term loan facilities of RMB490,004,000 and
RMB37,000,000 with maturity up to August 2018 and May
2022, respectively; and

(i) the Group expects to generate positive operating cash flows.

The Group will further improve its financial position in order to
improve liquidity and cash flows by implementing a number of
measures, including but not limited to, raising further medium to
long term banking facilities and rolling over short term banking
facilities to medium term when they fall due.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB131 million which are due within one year and approximately
RMB112 million which are repayable after one year.

The gearing ratio, which is debt-to-equity ratio, of the Group was
approximately 0.28 as at 31 March 2016 compared to approximately
0.98 as at 31 March 2015. During the year, the Company issued
and allotted 380,833,333 ordinary shares at HKD0.6 each under the
subscription agreements and accordingly the issued share capital
of the Company has been enlarged from 5,302,801,915 ordinary
shares to 5,683,635,248 ordinary shares.

Capital Expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment

Capital expenditure for purchase of property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately RMB21 million (2015: approximately
RMB61 million) for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had pledged assets in an aggregate
amount of approximately RMB872 million (2015: approximately
RMB1,053 million) to banks for banking facilities.
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Capital Commitments
As at 31 March 2016, the Group had no material capital
commitments.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect
of financial guarantees given by the Group to a bank for a bank loan
obtained by an associate of RMB60 million (2015: RMB&0 million).

Treasury Policy

The Group mainly operates in China with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB and US Dollar. The exposure of
exchange fluctuation in respect of RMB and US Dollar could affect
the Group's performance and asset value. However, there are no
significant differences of the carrying amount of the monetary
assets and liabilities which are denominated in US Dollar so the
Group has not experienced any material difficulties and liquidity
problems resulting from currency exchange fluctuations. The Group
still monitors the overall currency exposures.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had about 550 employees (2015:
about 600). The remuneration packages are generally structured
with reference to market conditions and individual qualifications.
Salaries and wages of the Group’s employees are normally
reviewed on an annual basis based on performance appraisals and
other relevant factors.
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed
to maintain good corporate governance standard and procedures
to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure in
order to enhance the shareholders’ value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all the
applicable code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 March 2016, save
for the deviations discussed below. The Board will continuously
review and improve the corporate governance practices and
standards of the Company to ensure that business activities and
decision making processes are regulated in a proper and prudent
manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions (the “Model Code”). Having made
specific enquiry of all directors of the Company, the directors of
the Company have confirmed that they have fully complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board is made up of Six Directors,
including three executive Directors, and three independent non-
executive Directors (the “INEDs"). The Directors are, collective
and individually, aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders.
One of the INEDs possesses appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management expertise. The Directors’
biographical details are set out in the section of "Biographical
Details of Directors” on pages 26 to 28.
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The Board members during the year ended 31 March 2016 and as at
the date up to this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jianging (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Bao Jun

Mr. Zhou Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Tom Xie

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year
at approximately quarterly intervals in addition to other Board
meetings that are required for significant and important issues, and
for statutory purposes. Appropriate and sufficient information is
provided to the Board members in a timely manner to keep them
abreast of the Group's latest development and thus assist them in
discharging their duties.

During the year, the Board held 10 meetings and the attendance of

the directors at the Board Meetings for the year ended 31 March
2016 is set out as below:

Name of Directors
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Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

EERSR HERE E@ERH
Executive Directors BITESR
Mr. Wang Jianging FREESRE

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (EEFTEAAZ) 9/10
Mr. Bao Jun IRE LA 10/10
Mr. Zhou Jian BfEEaE 10/10
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUEMITES
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming ZGRAE L 10/10
Mr. Wong Chi Keung |2 A 10/10
Mr. Tom Xie AR EE 10/10
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Board minutes are recorded in appropriate details and draft
minutes are circulated to all directors and committee members
for comments before being approved by the Board at the next
immediate meeting. All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary
and are open for inspection by the directors.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group and oversees the Group's business, strategic decisions and
financial performance. The Board delegates to the management
team the day-to-day management of the Company’s business
including the preparation of annual and interim reports, and for
implementation of internal control, business strategies and plans
developed by the Board.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other except those
disclosed in the director biographical details.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company,
notwithstanding that every Director shall be retired at least once
every three years.

Code Provision A.4.2 of the Code stipulates that all directors
appointed to fill causal vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment.
On the other hand, paragraph 4(2) of Appendix 3 of the Listing
Rules provides that such directors are to hold office until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election at that meeting. As mentioned in the annual
report for FY2006, the Board decided to leave the existing Bye-laws
unchanged given the inconsistencies in the Listing Rules.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wang is the chairman of the Company since 27 January 2011
and was appointed the chief executive officer (“CEQ") of the
Company on 15 September 2011. He is responsible for managing
the Board and the business of the Group.

Under the Code, the roles of chairman and CEO should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer
should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The Board considers that Mr. Wang possesses the essential
leadership skills to manage the Board and extensive knowledge in
the business of the Group. The present structure is more suitable
to the Company because it can promote the efficient formulation
and implementation of the Company’s strategies. Through the
supervision of the Board and the audit committee, balance of
power and authority can be ensured and there is no imminent need
to change the arrangement.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Group. Every director is fully aware of his responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Directors should participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant.

During the year under review and up to the date of this Annual
Report, relevant materials including regulatory updates have been
provided to the directors for their reference and study.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees with clearly-
defined written terms of reference. The independent view and
recommendations of the three committees ensure proper control
of the Group and the continual achievement of the high standard
corporate governance practices.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee (the
“RC") comprises three Independent non- executive directors,
namely, Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi Keung and Mr. Tom Xie.

The duties of the RC as per the terms of reference were as follows:

1. to formulate remuneration policy for approval by the Board,
which shall take into consideration factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies, employment conditions, and
responsibilities, and individual performance of the directors
and senior management. Performance shall be measured
against corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time; and implement the remuneration policy
laid down by the Board, if any;

2. to consult the chairman and/or chief executive about their
remuneration proposals for other executive directors. The
remuneration committee should have access to independent
professional advice if necessary;

3. without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing:

(@) make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration;

(b) review and approve the management’s remuneration
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives;
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determine with delegated responsibility the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management of the Group, including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment;

make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors;

consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;

review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it
is determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

determine the criteria for assessing employee’s
performance, which should reflect the Company's
business goals, objectives and targets;

to ensure that no director or any of his associate is
involved in deciding his own remuneration;

engage external professional advisors to assist and/or
advise the Committee on issues if necessary;

do any such things to enable the Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the
Board;
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() conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board
or contained in the constitution of the Company or
imposed by legislation;

(m) exercise such other powers, authorities and discretion,
and perform such other duties, of the directors in
relation to the remuneration as the Board may from time
to time delegate to it, have regard to the Corporate
Governance Code of the Listing Rules; and

(n) advise shareholders on how to vote with respect to any
service contracts of directors that require shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules as amended from time
to time.

The RC has every right to access to professional advice relating to
remuneration proposal if considered necessary. The RC has begun
to review the remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management.

The RC has held 1 meeting during the year ended 31 March 2016
and the attendance of the members is as follows:

Name of Members

l Corporate Governance Report

) NEEFEIHETIARAME
BB R P X OR PN AT
TERERER « R R

(m) EESSTHZEERBELET
RAMDEERTRIMNEEHE
ECFEWNHBERITEEME
7 BRERREE TETER
T R

(n) WREBEAREIT 2 EHHRBBR
F2 35 A0 o] Bt ] B ERAS BROR U
MESRBEOEITRR

ERRBAZEBERT  FHEESBEMF
MRS KEXER - FHERESCHRBEE
MEERSRERAS ZFHMBEEK -

BEZZ—R"F-A=-+—HLEFEA " F
MEESERIT—REE - KELREBERLN
T

Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

541 £ HERY, FlERB
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGRAE L 11
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) BZRAE(EE) 7
Mr. Tom Xie T E 11
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Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee (the “"AC")
comprises three Independent non-executive directors, namely,
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi Keung and Mr. Tom Xie.

The principal duties of the AC include:

(a) to be responsible for making recommendations to the board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(b)  to review with the group’s management and external auditor,
the adequacy of the group’s policies and procedures
regarding internal controls (including financial, operational
and compliance controls), risk management system and
any statement by the directors to be included in the annual
accounts prior to endorsement by the board;

(c) to review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard. The Committee should
understand the factors considered by the external auditors
in determining their audit scope, and should discuss with
the external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commencement. The
external auditors’ fees is to be negotiated by management,
and presented to the Committee for review and approval
annually;

(d) to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm
or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party
knowing all relevant information would reasonably conclude
to be part of the audit firm nationally or internationally.
The Committee should report to the Board, identifying and
making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed,;
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to review the Company’s financial information and to monitor
the integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them. In
reviewing these reports before submission to the Board, the
Committee should focus particularly on:

(i)  any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(iii) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting and auditing standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

with regard to (e) above:

(i) members of the Committee should liaise with the Board
and senior management, and the Committee must meet,
at least twice a year, with the external auditor; and

(i)  the Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected
in the reports and accounts, it should give due

consideration to any matters that have been raised by

the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting
and financial reporting function, compliance officer or

auditor;

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk committee, or
by the Board itself, to review the Company'’s risk management
and internal control systems;
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(m)

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with the management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems, including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, and to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management's response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

to review arrangements by which employees of the
Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. The Committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for the fair and independent
investigation of such matters and for appropriate follow-up
action;
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to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company's relation with the external auditor, and to
evaluate the cooperation received by the external auditors,
including their access to all requested records, data and
information; obtain the comments of management regarding
the responsiveness of the external auditors to the Group’s
needs; inquire of the external auditors as to whether there
have been any disagreements with management which if not
satisfactorily resolved would result in the issue of a qualified
report on the group’s financial statements;

to obtain from the external auditors annually information
about policies and processes for maintaining independence
and monitoring compliance with relevant requirements,
including provision of non-audit services and requirements
regarding rotation of audit partners and staff;

to discuss with the external auditors any recommendations
arising from the audit (if necessary in the absence of
management);

to meet with the auditor, at least once a year, in the absence
of management to discuss matters relating to its audit fees,
any issue arising from the audit and any other matters the
auditor may wish to raise;

to the engagement of the external auditors to perform non-
audit services is in general prohibited except for tax-related
services. If a compelling reason exists to engage the external
auditors due to their unique expertise in a particular area, the
prior approval of the Committee is required;

to review and consider the findings of internal investigations
and management’s response into any suspected frauds or
irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringements of
laws, rules and regulations;

to agree with the Board the Company’s policy relating to
the hiring of employees or former employees of the external
auditors and monitor the applications of such policy. The
Committee shall consider whether as a result of such hiring
there has been any impairment of the auditor’'s judgment or
independence in respect of an audit;
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(v)  to report to the Board on the above matters; and
(w) to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

The AC is authorized by the Board to investigate any activity and
seek any information it requires within its term of reference. It
is also authorized to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice and to invite the attendance of outsiders with
relevant experience and expertise if it considers this necessary.

Reporting to the Board of Directors of the Company, the AC is
dedicated to review and supervise the Group's financial reporting
process and internal controls. The financial results for the year
ended 31 March 2016 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The AC is reviewing the internal controls of the Group.

The AC conducts at least two regular meetings a year in addition
to other meetings that are required for significant and important

issues, and for statutory purposes.

The AC has held 2 meetings during the year ended 31 March 2016
and the attendance of the members is as follows:

Name of Members

(v) MEHFERLLEEE: R
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Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

BRMR HERS E@ERH
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming 2GR £ 2/2
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) B2REE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Tom Xie AR 2/2

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Audit Committee had
reviewed the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 March

2016 and the interim report for the six months ended 30 September
2015.
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Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee (the “NC")
comprises Mr. Wang Jianging, the chairman and the executive
director of the Company and two Independent non-executive
directors, namely, Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi Keung.

The duties of the NC as per the terms of reference were as follows:

(a) to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, qualifications, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.
Sufficient biographical details of nominated candidates shall
be provided to the Board and/or shareholders to enable them
to make an informed decision;

(c) to make recommendations to the Board the appointment or
re-appointment of directors of the Company and succession
planning for directors of the Company in particular the
chairman and the chief executive of the Company;

(d) toidentify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies of
directors for the Board’s approval;

(e) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company;

(f)  to do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge
its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board; and

(g) to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitution of the Company or imposed by
legislation.
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The NC has held 1 meeting during the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_ZT—XF=ZA=1+—BIFE ' &%
and the attendance of the members is as follows: ZEGERT-REE  KELHEBEROT :
Number of attendance/
Name of Members Number of Meetings
REXR HERS EFHERY
Mr. Wang Jianging TEELEE 1/1
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming 2GR £ 1/1
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) BmREE(ERE) 11
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE EFREMBERCRE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the EERARERUAKRENBRE BT

preparation of the financial statements of the Group and ensure
that the financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standard. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of the
Group.

The Statement of external auditors of the Company, Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statement of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 43 to 44.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 March 2016, fees payable to the auditor of
the Group for audit services was approximately RMB1,600,000.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board, through the AC, conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Group which covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Pursuant to F.1.2 of the Code, the appointment of the company
secretary should be dealt with by a physical board meeting rather
than a written resolution. The appointment of the current company
secretary was dealt with by a written resolution in September 2013.
The Board considers that, prior to the execution of the written
resolution to appoint the current company secretary, all Directors
were individually consulted on the matter without any dissenting
opinion and there was no need to approve the matter by a physical
board meeting instead of a written resolution.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

To enhance transparency and effectively communicate with
shareholders and investors, the board and the Company maintain
an on-going dialogue with shareholders mainly through the
Company's financial reports, annual general meeting and other
general meetings.

The Company also maintains a website at http://www.yuanhenggas.com
as one of communication channel for the shareholders and
investors. For any enquiries, the shareholders, the investors, media
or the public may contact the Company directly, contact details of
which are posted on the Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company held an annual

general meeting. The attendance of the directors at the meetings
was as follows:

Name of Directors

! Corporate Governance Report

LFHWE

STRIFBFI2IGRTE » RAMEZEZERMU
CHEEEZEEAMIEMRBER AR
B -BERRMEZLREER=_FT—=FAN
ANEMRERRE - EFERA  BRY
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BZMREERBRT A EUEIR -
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AR RN A8 ubihttp:/Avww.yuanhenggas.com
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R -REE HEBIRXBRATWEEME
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iV NI
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AIRTT—ARERFAE  EFHREE
BRI

Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

EEpR HERE EERY
Executive Directors BITESE

Mr. Wang Jianging TEELEE 1/1
Mr. Bao Jun IRE LA 1/1
Mr. Zhou Jian Akt 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUEMITES

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming 2GRS L 11
Mr. Wong Chi Keung |2 A 11
Mr. Tom Xie AERESEE 11
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year ended 31 March 2016, there had been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for convening a special general meeting by shareholders
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so
in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, either any number of shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting
to which the requisition relates; or not less than one hundred (100)
shareholders may make requisition in writing to the Company:

(a) to give to shareholders of the company entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting;

(b)  to circulate to members entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand (1,000) words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at
that meeting.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquires to the board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquires to the Company by post or
delivery to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at Room 4102, 41/F., Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jianqing

Mr. Wang, aged 47, has extensive experience and business
network in the energy and trading industry. Mr. Wang obtained
his Bachelor’'s degree in Industrial Management Engineering
from Zhenjiang Shipbuilding College (now known as the Jiangsu
University of Science and Technology).

Mr. Wang was the chairman and executive director of Fresh Express
Delivery Holdings Group Co., Limited (formerly known as “FU JI
Food and Catering Services Holdings Limited”) (stock code: 1175)
(retired on 24 September 2014). He is also the general manager of
Guangzhou Circle Energy Company Ltd.

Mr. Wang is a cousin of Mr. Bao Jun, an executive director of the

Company.

Mr. Bao Jun

Mr. Bao, aged 48, has over 20 years of experience in project
investment, construction and operation management. He obtained
his bachelor degree in Engineering from Jiangnan University
(formerly known as Wuxi Polytechnic University) in 1989. Mr. Bao
joined Guangdong Light Industry Design Institute as an engineer
from 1989 to 2000 and was responsible for the research and
development of the manufacturing technique of various biological-
engineering and chemical engineering projects such as the design
and management of amino acids production plant and brewery.

Mr. Bao is a cousin of Mr. Wang Jianging, the Chairman and an
executive director of the Company.

Mr. Zhou Jian

Mr. Zhou, age 42, holds a Master’s degree in Economics from the
Central University of Finance and Economics, the People’s Republic
of China.

Mr. Zhou was responsible for the global fuel oil trading during his
service in China National United Oil Corporation as well as the fuel
oil spot and future markets managing of its branches in Asia and
America. He was also a senior manager of Titan Petrochemicals
Group Limited (stock code: 1192), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, in the oil storage and distribution divisions. Mr. Zhou
has over 10 years of extensive working experience in energy field
with broad business network, and is familiar with global energy
environment and market.

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited JTZARIER AR A7)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, aged 48, has extensive knowledge and
experience in risk management of financial instruments, treasury
business and financial derivative products. He has served DBS
Bank for eight years and was Senior Vice President in the Treasury
and Markets Division upon his departure from the bank on 22 May
2009. Dr. Leung started his career in the finance industry in 1996
with Citibank as quantitative analyst in the Equity Derivatives Asia
Department. He had served a few other financial institutes before
joining DBS Bank Ltd as a financial product specialist as well and
had held various roles in business development, trading and risk
management.

Dr. Leung, a native Hong Kong citizen with Chinese nationality,
holds a Bachelor (First Class Honours) degree of Science (1990)
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Master degree of
Science in Mathematics (1993) and a Doctor degree of Philosophy
in Mathematics (1996) from the California Institute of Technology,
and a Master degree of Science in Investment Management (1999)
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

He also has been in the position of independent non-executive
director for Fresh Express Delivery Holdings Group Co., Limited
(formerly known as “FU JI Food and Catering Services Holdings
Limited”) (stock code: 1175) since 8 July 2013.

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Wong Chi Keung, aged 61, holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the University of Adelaide in Australia.
He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and CPA Australia; an associate member of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. Wong is
also a Responsible Officer for asset management and advising on
securities for CASDAQ International Capital Market (HK) Company
Limited under the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong.
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Mr. Wong was as an executive director, the deputy general
manager, group financial controller and company secretary of
Yuexiu Property Company Limited (formerly known as Guangzhou
Investment Company Limited) (stock code: 123), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, for over ten years. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Asia Orient Holdings
Limited (stock code: 214), Asia Standard International Group
Limited (stock code: 129), Century City International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 355), Nickel Resources International Holdings
Company Limited (formerly known as China Nickel Resources
Holdings Company Limited) (stock code: 2889), China Ting Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3398), ENM Holdings Limited
(stock code: 128), Golden Eagle Retail Group Limited (stock code:
3308), Paliburg Holdings Limited (stock code: 617), Regal Hotels
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 78), TPV Technology
Limited (stock code: 903), Zhuguang Holdings Group Company
Limited (stock code: 1176), Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited
(stock code: 1039) and China Shanshui Cement Group Limited
(stock code: 691), all of these companies are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Wong has over 36 years of experience in finance, accounting
and management. Mr. Wong was also an independent non-
executive director of PacMOS Technologies Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1010) (retired on 1 July 2014) and First Natural Foods
Holdings Limited (now known as Imperial Pacific International
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1076) (resigned on 21 November
2013), both of these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong was also a Responsible Officer for Greater China
Capital Limited (resigned on 16 April 2016), responsible for asset
management, advising on securities and advising on corporate
finance, under the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong.

Mr. Tom Xie
Mr. Xie, aged 66, has years of management experience with a Hong
Kong listed company.

Mr. Xie obtained a Master of Science degree and a Master's
Graduation Certificate in Gemology, both from China University of

Geosciences (Beijing) in 2012.

Mr. Xie is currently an independent non-executive director of
U-Right International Holdings Limited (stock code: 627). Mr. Xie
is also the Permanent Honorary Chairman of the Confederacy of
Hong Kong Shanwei Clansmen Limited.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associate are set out in
note 50 and note 24 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, a discussion
on the Group's future business development and an analysis
of the Group's performance during the year using key financial
performance indicators are provided in the “Chairman Statement”
on pages 2 to 3 and the “Management Discussion and Analysis of
the Group Financial Review” on pages 4 to 9 of this Annual Report.

The capital risk management and financial risk management
objectives and policies of the Group are shown in notes 6 and 7 to
the consolidated financial statements on pages 88 to 102 of this
Annual Report.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the year ended 31 March 2016, as far as the Company is
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group.
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Environmental protection

The Group understands that its business has an impact on
the environment and recognizes the importance of sound
environmental management practices and sustainable business
operations. It is committed to comply with the relevant
environmental standards and policies related to its business
operations as set by the government in People’s Republic of China
("PRC") and Hong Kong.

The Group has implemented a number of environment-friendly
measures in its operations and workplaces including but not limited
to plants, warehouses and offices. In its day-to-day operations,
the Group advocates “paperless office” and actively promotes
electronic management information system. It also sets up required
equipments in order to arrange different kinds of meeting by using
teleconference and video conference, resulting in savings in time

and resources.

Relationships with employees, customers and suppliers

The Group recognizes that employees, customers and suppliers
and business associates are key stakeholders to the Group's
success. It strives to achieve corporate sustainability through
engaging its employees, providing quality products and services
to its customers, collaborating with business partners (including
suppliers and contractors) to deliver quality products and services
and supporting our community.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 45.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the Company’s authorised, issued and fully paid

share capital are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY
There is no reserve available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 March 2016.
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EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the acquisition of an associate, convertible bond
and embedded derivatives disclosed in notes 24, 40 and 41,
respectively to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Company during the
year or subsisted at end of the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Wang Jianging
Mr. Bao Jun

Mr. Zhou Jian

Independent non-executive directors:
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Tom Xie

In accordance with Article (87) of the Company’s Bye-laws, one
third of directors for the time being shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
securities (the “Listing Rules”) and considers all the independent
non-executive directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS EFRFETHARRE®G -

IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND HRBRG RATRERSZER
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As at 31 March 2016, the directors and chief executive of the RZE—RNE=ZA=+—H ' KRRIGESE
Company had the following interests and short positions in the REZITHABRARA RISEAER AR (A
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or BERF RGN FHFRBAEBKRM])EXV
any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the R T2 W) 2 D - ARG RIEEE
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which (a) are required, o A GR)ERERSMEBEIEMEIS2E
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register Z%ﬁ”‘ﬂ?Efj’*ﬁ(\g%lxxﬁﬁ;_zyjaaﬂﬁﬂqz%m

referred to therein; or (b) otherwise notified to the Company and KA B(b)BERE LM AR ESRETES
the Stock Exchange (pursuant to the Model Code for Securities x%ziﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁlj TAe AR a R Z
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies). ERERABWT »

Number of Shares held

Friziin B B
Long Short Percentage of
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interest position position total holding
EERS LV F-1:3 He e BRESL
(Note 2)
(PHEE2)
Wang Jianging Interest in controlled 3,292,968,787 — 57.94%
corporation (Note 1)
TEE RyEEE ks (M)
Bao Jun Beneficial interest 45,000,000 — 0.79%
RE EnEn
Note: st
1. Mr. Wang Jianging was deemed interested in, and duplicated, the 1. IRBEERAAREENEEERARAERE
2,656,464,436 shares which Champion Ever Limited was interested, the % 2.2,656,464,436 % B 15+ Galaxy King Limited
586,486,402 shares which Galaxy King Limited was interested, and the B s 2 586,486,402 IR0 R B IRIREEH
50,017,949 shares which Champion Golden Limited was interested. Champion fRA BB #E2S 2 50,017, Q498 B {n B fE 2 »
Golden Limited is held as to 50% by Mr. Wang Jianging. Both Champion Ever FBRIRIRBTRBE R ERFHS0% - BEEARDAR
Limited and Galaxy King Limited are wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianging. Galaxy King Limited IR ERBLEZEHER »

2. The percentage holding is calculated on the issued share capital of the 2. BRAD L IREBEARRRZE—R"E=ZA=1+—
Company as at 31 March 2016, i.e. 5,683,635,248 shares of the Company. HZ B E#ITRA (BN R F5,683,635,248 % i 17)
FHEBE -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the directors,
chief executives of the Company had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which (a) are required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 & 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO); or
(b) are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) are required, pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

As at 31 March 2016, none of the directors of the Company had any
interests in respect of options to subscribe for the shares of the
Company under the Company’s share option scheme approved and
adopted on 23 August 2002.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ rights to
acquire shares”, none of the directors, their spouses or children
under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for shares of the
Company, or had exercised any such right during the year, and at
no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Other than as set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements and as disclosed under the heading “Related party
transactions and other disclosures”, no transactions, arrangement
or contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are disclosed in note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BREXPHEEEN R-T—-RF=H
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries had entered into
the following transactions which constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing

RMEXHRSEMERX S

RAFEE  RABAREMBARBRTIAT
R WEXZREETHRAE14A BB
RABZFHBHERS o

Rules.

On 4 September 2014, EM T = A B R 2 & (Guangzhou
Yuanheng Gas Co., Limited*) (“Yuanheng Gas"), a wholly-
owned foreign enterprise established under the laws of
the PRC and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a supply agreement ("GG Supply
Agreement”) with Guizhou Gas (Group) Co., Ltd* (E/NAR
(@) BBREMLAF) ("Guizhou Gas") for supply of LNG to
Guizhou Gas, its subsidiaries and its associates (collectively
“GG Group"). Guizhou Gas holds 50% interests in & /NZEF 8t
IR E BB AT (Guizhou Huaheng Energy Investments Co.,
Ltd*) ("Huaheng Energy”), a company established under the
laws of the PRC and indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company where the Company indirectly holds the
remaining 50% interests in it. Therefore, Guizhou Gas is a
connected person of the Company.

The table below sets out the aggregate of the annual cap for
the GG Supply Agreement:

R-ZZE—OFENLAMB - BEMTZMR
RERAB([TFMR] - —FRED
BRI ZINEBERE - WAK
REZEEZENBERR)BREEMA
REB)BREERRTEMARD) -
HIB AR REBE AL (5 [ S M
MREE ) HERIERAREEN AR
FI— o ek (T E MR
&) - BMRRIBEEMETREIRIKE
BRAR([EFRR]—BREPEIE
BRIZARE/ARB HEEE
MEBAR - MARBRERFEHEBRT
50% 2 ez ) 50% s o E Ik - MR
RARRABZBEATL

TREJNEMNMRHEEHHE 2 FE L
PRARER -

Annual cap

FEER
RMB
AR#
From 1 October 2014 to year ended 31 March 2015 R-ZZE—NF+A-BEEE
—E-AFZA=+—ALFE 230,000,000
From 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 RIE-—AFMA—BE
—E-RF=ZA=+—H 457,000,000
From 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 RZE—R"FMNA—HZE
—T—+F¥=A=+—8 466,000,000
The total sale of natural gas products to members of BE_Z—hFNUA—RBE_ZT—RF

the GG Group from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 was
RMB86,100,000.
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On 4 September 2014, Yuanheng Gas entered into a purchase
agreement (“GG Purchase Agreement”) with Guizhou Gas for
purchase of natural gas products (including both LNG and
natural gas) by members of the Group from members of the

GG Group.

The table below sets out the aggregate of the annual cap for
the GG Purchase Agreement:

R-Z-—MEAAWB  TFRRMAK
SEXERRMEMNRREBKE R
ARBEAARER(BRBRIERARK
RAR)BENRRET L —DBE =
(TEMRRBEWZ]) -

TREINEMNRRBEMZ 2 FE LR
e

Annual cap

FELR
RMB
AER#
From 1 October 2014 to year ended 31 March 2015 RZZE—NFE+H—BEEZE

—E-RAF=ZA=+—HULEFE 151,000,000

From 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 RZZE-—hFMHA—BE
—E-RF=ZA=1+—H 518,000,000

From 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 RIZE-—RFMA—HBE
—E—+tF=A=+—H 567,000,000

The total purchase of natural gas products from members
of the GG Group from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 was
RMB149,597,000.

On 4 September 2014, Yuanheng Gas entered into a supply
agreement ("JR Supply Agreement”) with Jiangsu Runfu New
Energy Development Co., Ltd.* (IR EEFHERERERA
Al ("JS Runfu”) for supply of LNG to JS Runfu. JS Runfu is
owned as to 70% by Mr. Wang Jian, a brother of Mr. Wang
Jianging (“Mr. Wang”), an executive Director, the chairman,
chief executive officer and controlling shareholder of the
Company and a cousin of Mr. Bao Jun, an executive Director
and therefore Mr. Wang Jian and JS Runfu are associates of
Mr. Wang and are connected persons of the Company.

RZFE-—AFHNA-—HBEZFT—RF
“A=t-HRAEMEREEKE R
AIBEZRARERBBERARE
149,597,0007T °
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EEMIHEEREREZHBEALR
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The table below sets out the aggregate of the annual cap for
the JR Supply Agreement:

TREFIFHEEREH A FELR
HEE

Annual cap

FEELR
RMB
N
From 1 October 2014 to year ended 31 March 2015 RZE—NFE+H—BEEZE

ZE-RAF-A=-t+—HLEFE 27,000,000

From 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 RZE—RAFUA—RH=E
—E-RF=ZA=1+—H 54,000,000

From 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 RIZE-—RFMNA—HBE
—2—+F=ZA=1+—H 55,000,000

JS Runfu has no longer been a connected party since 3 April
2015. There was no sales of LNG to JS Runfu from 1 April 2015
to 3 April 2015.

On 4 September 2014, Huaheng Energy entered into an
agreement (“GG Construction Agreement”) with & M5 JRIA
RERFERBR AT (Guizhou Hongyuan Gas Construction
and Development Co., Ltd*) (“GG Constructor”), a company
established under the laws of the PRC and a subsidiary
of Guizhou Gas, for retaining GG Constructor to be the
contractor of Huaheng Energy for construction of the pipeline
networks and the supporting facilities.

The table below sets out the aggregate of the annual cap for
the GG Construction Agreement:

IHBEEE _T—AFONA=RFETH
BBAEAL - BT —AFMA—RZE
—E-RFMA=ZH " TEMAIHFES
HEEMBIERAR -

4. MZFT-—MFEAAMWAB - EFFERME
REMNBRRRERERARAR(E
MRRER] - —EREHBEIERKL
ZRE W REMRRZHEBAR) B
ETFRRZABAETEBPEREE
REEETRAEMNARERIL 0
BR(TEMRRERAR])

TREINEMNRRERARZFELR

#EE

Annual cap

FELR
RMB
NS
From 1 October 2014 to year ended 31 March 2015 RZZ—NFE+A-BZEEZE

TE-RF=ZA=+—HLEFE 6,700,000

From 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 R_ZE-—LFMA—HBE
—E-R"E=ZA=+—H 6,500,000

From 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 RIE-—RFMNA—BZE
—E—+tF=A=+—H 4,800,000
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There were no construction works carried out by GG
Constructor for Huaheng Energy from 1 April 2015 to 31
March 2016.

On 4 September 2014, Huaheng Energy entered into an
agreement ("GG Procurement Agreement”) with HINRR
SEMEE FH AR AR (Guizhou Gas Group Material Trading
Co., Ltd*), ("GG Material”), a company established under the
laws of the PRC and a subsidiary of Guizhou Gas, for purchase
of materials for construction of the pipeline networks.

The table below sets out the aggregate of the annual cap for
the GG Procurement Agreement:

R-E-—RFHNA—HBE-_T—RF=
A=+— 'f)ll)é%ﬂ@ax BAETTE
%ﬁ%ﬁZ@ ETHE -

5. R MEAAMBE - EFFaERME

—=_—
TEERMELTREREMELEINMNMN
REENEBRSERAB(EMNARY
Bl —HREPBEEEKILZ AR
WREMRRZHMBAR)TL— 0%
& ([ EMRRERBHE] -

TR EMNRREERZ 2 FELR
M

Annual cap

From 1 October 2014 to year ended 31 March 2015 R-ZE—

From 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 H_ET—
From 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 P

There were no construction materials purchased from GG
Material from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016.

The independent non-executive directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continued connected transactions
have been entered into by the Group:

() inthe ordinary and usual course of its business;

(i)  on normal commercial terms or better and which are no
less favorable to the Group than those available to or
from independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

FE LR
RMB
AR®
mE+A-BERE
—AF=A=+—HItFE 8,600,000
AFMNA—HZE
—RNE=ZRA=+—H 10,500,000
NFEMA—HZE
E—t+F=A=+—H” 5,900,000

RZE—RAFNA—BE_T—X =
A=+—H TEMEMNRRYEEE
WA -

ﬁi#%ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%&jjiﬁ&m REB T
RINM 2 BB RAE

()  TIR—BEBEEEEBED

() TETEAAREETHRAE
TE= 2 —REEER(RERE
BRI+ R

iy NREBEHERXSHEET MR
SHBERBAFEARE  WRAEARAD
AN ER R 2 R RS o
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions set out above
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing the following findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules:

()  the transactions have received the approval of the Board
of Directors of the Company;

(i)  the transactions were in all material respects in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group if the
transactions involve provision of good or services by the
Group;

(i) the transactions have been entered into in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(iv) the transactions have not exceeded the cap disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 4 September
2014.

There are no other connected transactions which are
required to be disclosed in this report in accordance with
the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
with respect to continuing connected transactions entered
into by the Company and the Group during the year ended 31
March 2016.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND SHORT FERFREMALTZERHRE
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING RS REHE

SHARES OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 March 2016, the following shareholders (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company whose interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company are disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures” above) had interests in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which

were recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:

RZF-—ARE=ZA=1+—0 BEAQRBARE
EHLHBIEDIEBEFE 2 E LM
% THRR(PREX[EEREETHRAR
R - AR MR 2 E AR |—
TR IRBE N AR B I - HEARR D & E#E
ERREARBNARNEETHARAEET
BABRRINRARR D - RN M E#E
EREEELD

Number of Shares held

FRriFBx {8 B
Long Short Percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest position position total holding
'3 £4" 9 1] 53 EEHYE HEe HE BRES
(Note 5)
(PfFES)
Champion Ever Limited Beneficial interest (Note 1) 2,656,464,436 — 46.74%
HEARAE T (KIFED)
Galaxy King Limited Beneficial Interest (Note 2) 586,486,402 = 10.32%
Emites (MFE2)
Cheng Xu Family interest (Note 3) 3,292,968,787 — 57.94%
[EX0S Kt (MHFE3)
Pengda Value Fund SPC Beneficial Interest (Note 4) 300,000,000 — 5.28%
(acting for and on Btk (M5Ee)
behalf of Pengda SP)
Pengda Value Fund SPC
(fXPengda SPT)
Cinda Asset Management Investment manger (Note 4) 300,000,000 — 5.28%
(Cayman) Limited HEEEA (ML)
Cinda International Interest in controlled corporation 300,000,000 — 5.28%
Holdings Limited (Note 4)
FEBRERER AT RyEA B (M)
China Cinda Asset Interest in controlled corporation 300,000,000 — 5.28%

Management Co. Ltd.
hEEEEEEERD
BRAF]

(Note 4)
ZiEEEEw (H1FE4)
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1. Champion Ever Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianging.
2. Galaxy King Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianging.

&k Ms. Cheng is the spouse of Mr. Wang Jianqing and is deemed interested in, and
duplicated, the interests Mr. Wang is interested in.

4. Based on the disclosure of interests forms filed, Pengda Value Fund SPC (acting
for and on behalf of Pengda SP) is managed by Cinda Asset Management
(Cayman) Limited. Cinda Asset Management (Cayman) Limited is wholly owned
by Cinda (BVI) Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by Cinda International
Holdings Limited, which in turn is held as to 63% by Sinoday Limited, which in
turn is wholly owned by China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited, which
in turn is wholly owned by HEIFEEEEERH AR AT (China Cinda Asset
Management Co., Ltd.).

5. The percentage holding is calculated on the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2016, i.e. 5,683,635,248 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, no person had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under Bye-law 166(1) of the Company’s bye-laws, the directors shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their
respective offices, provided that this indemnity shall not extend to
any matter in respect of any willful negligence, willful default, fraud
or dishonesty which may attached to any of them. Such permitted
indemnity provision is currently in force and was in force throughout
the financial year.

The Company has purchased the directors’ liability insurance to
provide protection against claims arising from the lawful discharge
of duties by the Directors.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS EEEFRRHER

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable to AEBTERXFRBEEFMGFAEEER
the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows: REZB BT -

Sales HES %
— The largest customer — RAREF 23
- Five largest customers aggregated — EREFAS 73
Purchases -3 1] %
— The largest suppliers — &AHER 50
— Five largest suppliers aggregated — hAHEEEF 71

None of the directors, their associate or any shareholders (which BEE BREIHBBEATIBRESZAES
to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the RARRAS% LA £ 2 ERIARER - RERHE
Company'’s share capital) had an interest in the Group's five largest EREERARHERNERES ER#ER o
suppliers or customers during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS EEWAE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the RARZARMAIS B REEIMERBAA
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige NAVRERLHIRRARERIEZ B EHRN
the Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing BEBERSAT -

shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE FOR SECURITIES BFEFETESFXHZTA
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of RABERAEETAEREEFETES
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions (the “Code”). RSB FFASFRD) - RAKARZE
Having made specific enquiry of all directors of the Company, ERFHARETHARE  ARARESREZEC
the directors of the Company have complied with the required E-RNFZA=-+—RALFER—EHEETFTT
standard as set out in the Code throughout the year ended 31 BIFTIRE 2 8 ©

March 2016.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 March 2016.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
WANG JIANQING
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 30 June 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Deloitte.
=E)

TO THE MEMBERS OF

YUAN HENG GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
TFRERERARLE

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yuan
Heng Gas Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “"Group”) set out on pages 45 to 170,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those

BTTRAERARLFZZEER

TFRRERARAF
(REREZEZME L ERAA)

RITEEZHNFISE17T0E Z LT RRIE
BRERXR([EAR])REMBRR AT
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BREENR-_ZE-—R"F=ZA=t—RHZ&KE
MBRARREBEZA L FREZEEER
REMEERAREK  FEBDEEHRR N
HERERER  URTESHABRBER
Hipfre & st o

EFNGSMBERRARBZRE

BERREFARERBEESGTMAGRM
ZERUBRELENREFRB QBRG] 2 B E
RERHELEEMAFIHERE S U BT
xR UNESHERVBEZERABEE
BUE I R BAR B B 75 R B N A R RRE
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standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2016, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE-_TR"FZA=1t—HLFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —hF
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
ihg=a AR®TR AREFIT
Turnover X 8 6,841,169 6,440,317
Operating costs PRI WIN 9 (6,735,514) (6,250,090)
Gross profit EF 105,655 190,227
Other income HAu U A 11 46,579 22,719
Other gains and losses Hfh e K E54E 12 (2,115) 400
Distribution and selling expenses D REERY (10,357) (26,128)
Administrative expenses TR (101,621) (87,700)
Share of results of associates e N E 4,224 462
Finance costs BhE Bk 2N 13 (48,451) (70,562)
(Loss) profit before tax KA AT (B8 ) s A (6,086) 29,418
Income tax (expense) credit Frisfi (A% 14 (13,935) 3,127
(Loss) profit for the year FE(ER )R 15 (20,021) 32,545
Other comprehensive income (expense) FRAEH b2 EWA (FI5Z)
for the year
Item that may be reclassified HZEENHEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BahyEE -
Exchange differences arising on R E mEA 2 E M =58
translation 417 (658)
Total comprehensive (expense) income fFRAZE (FAX) WA 4258
for the year (19,604) 31,887
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to:  4F A &G % | (E518) :
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZZ =N 9,676 19,251
Non-controlling interests FEIERR MR (29,697) 13,294
(20,021) 32,545
Total comprehensive income (expense) fE(E2EW A (FI )48%E :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VAN/NEIEZZ =N 10,093 18,593
Non-controlling interests FEFERSHE 51 (29,697) 13,294
(19,604) 31,887
Earnings per share (RMB cents) BREN(ARE D 19
— Basic — &K 0.18 0.36
— Diluted — s 0.18 N/A
N 3E A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR e MR RER

At 31 March 2016
RZE—RFE=ZA=+—H

2016 2015
—EB-REF —E—HF
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’000
Bt aE AR®TT ARBTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBDEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE K& 20 837,086 882,441
Prepaid lease payments FAREER 21 38,671 40,033
Goodwill kS 22 56,740 56,740
Intangible asset mEE 23 8,559 8,952
Interests in associates N kNI 24 111,421 30,462
Long-term receivables REARE W RIA 25 60,806 54,359
Amount due from a non-controlling R B AR —%&
equity owner of subsidiaries FEIERR T E R ARKIR 26 - 39,222
Deferred tax assets RIEFHIBEE 27 4,818 1,301
Deposits for property, plant and BEREBE TWE -
equipment under finance lease W KRa& s i2e 847 4,924
1,118,948 1,118,434
CURRENT ASSETS RERE
Inventories e 28 26,181 45,768
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H At FEUBR TR 29 1,554,880 1,017,628
Prepaid lease payments BRHEER 21 1,362 1,362
Long-term receivables due within one year 7 —F N E|EJEY = HAfE U
I 25 27,006 -
Amount due from a non-controlling U —FEH B AR —%
equity owner of a subsidiary eI R EE AKIE 26 2,904 1,214
Amounts due from related parties FEUS B FRE A T RUIR 30 480 2,923
Tax recoverable AT E IR = 2,944
Short-term investments RERE 31 = 19,500
Pledged bank deposits SHEBRITER 32 289,915 383,405
Cash and cash equivalents B MRS EEIAR 32 61,129 26,064
1,963,857 1,500,808
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MBI RE

At 31 March 2016
RZE—RFE=ZA=+—H

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—FHF
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’000
B 5E AR%®TR ARET T
CURRENT LIABILITIES mREAR
Trade and other payables B 5 M E M BRFR 33 1,871,261 1,101,324
Amounts due to associates AN NGIE ] 34 3,203 22,310
Amount due to a shareholder FE —ZRE R FhIE 35 = 6,105
Amount due to a non-controlling equity BN —REIKfIB AR —%
owner of a subsidiary IR R B ARIA 36 10,000 -
Tax payable FERTERIE 62,349 52,311
Bank borrowings due within one year IRITIEE - —FREIH 37 131,282 648,895
Obligations under finance leases BhEFH 4 AR HE 38 1,115 5,535
2,079,210 1,836,480
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REARBE (115,353) (335,672)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRDHAR
LIABILITIES 1,003,595 782,762
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B& 7 B & fi
Share capital N 39 475,031 443,282
Reserves E 298,237 129,398
Equity attributable to owners RARGER NEIEER
of the Company 773,268 572,680
Non-controlling interests R 105,332 141,802
TOTAL EQUITY Hauw 878,600 714,482
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
sr e BIEAR R ERR

At 31 March 2016
RZE—RFE=ZA=+—H

2016 2015
—E—RF —T—AF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt aE AR®TT ARBTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBRRE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 27 = 15,882
Bank borrowings due after one year RITEE - —F1&2H 37 56,000 51,000
Convertible bond AR EZF 40 56,054 -
Embedded derivatives RARITETA 41 12,941 =
Obligations under finance leases & 4 38 - 1,398
124,995 68,280
1,003,595 782,762
The consolidated financial statements on pages 45 to 170 were EASEHEFI1T0EZ EAMBREEN -
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 —RNESNA=SFHEESSH & RIEET
June 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: R TIEERREE
WANG JIANQING ZHOU JIAN
EEE AR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
= =

A8 Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited JTZARIER AR A A
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

ARHBHRS

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z-—REZA=1+—HLFE

l\/T\

Attributable to owners of the Company

KORNEARG
(Accumulated
Statutory [osses) Non-
Share Share Other Other surplus  Designated ~ Translation ~ retained controlling
capital ~ premium capitll  reseve  reserve safetyfund  reseve  earnings Total  interests Total
tERR  ERRR (BHEE
Bt BRAR  RbEE AR ] Bb  HRBR  RERA gt FuBER it
RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  ARMBOO0  RMBOO0  ARMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBONO
AGETT  ABBTT  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARET ARETr  ARET ARETR  ARETR  \RETR
(note g (note b} note ¢ (note d
(k) (W) () (i)
At 31 March 2014 HNE-ME=A=1-A 102,767 160816 6810 (10034) 1225 353 2860 [46n) 55,087 130,508 48459
Proftfor the year REREH - - - - I RN €T S 17
Other comprehensive expense RERABAERR
for the year - - - (658) - (658) - (659)
Total comprehensive (expense) income. ~ AEE2(R hALE
for the year - - - (658) 19251 18593 13294 31,867
lsu of Consideration Shares BORERR
(note 2o the consolidated (GABEERNER)
financial statements) 0515 31615 [376870)  (3675,260) - - - - - - -
Dividend ke - - - - - - - (2000 (2000
Transferto statutory surplus reserve EETTRUEE = = 4§04 = = L8 = = -
Transfer to designated safsty fund ERZEERLAHA - = = 180 - 182) - - -
At 31 March 2015 HNE-7E=f=1-f w3n 384 - [37h808) 17149 11380 20 1862 512680 141,802 114482
Profit oss) ortheyear RERRT(ER) - - - - - 9476 wWe Ben )
Othertotal comprehensive income TERERRENAGE
forthe year - - - i - i - 47
Total comprehensive income (expense) — AEERRRA(FR )48
for the year - - - iy 9676 10,09 (29.691) (19,60
lsue of shares note 3910 the KORh(EAehEE
consoldated fnancil statements) i) K I - - - - - - 1045 - 1045
Acquiston of additonal interestin~~~ WE~FHBA
asubsidlary BiER - - - - - - - (3,445 (3,445
Dividend s - - - - - - - (3328) (33%8)
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve by - - 9959 - - 9.959) - - -
Transterto designated safty fund ERREEpA S - - - §.968 - (6,968) - - -
At 31 March 2016 RE-REZR=T-R 415031 4031177 (3,775,606) 271,108 20,328 2619 (1.389) 773,268 105,332 878,600
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AN
/Qﬂ—\l:l

RSB BHE

For the year ended 31 March 2016

HE—

Notes:

50 Yuan

E—AFZA=t—HILEE

Other capital of RMB376,870,000 represents the capital of Union Honour
Limited (“"UHL") before the completion of the acquisition of UHL (see note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements) as at 1 April 2014.

Other reserve of the Group as at 1 April 2014 mainly represents the financial
impact of adopting merger accounting for the acquisition of UHL, its
subsidiaries and a debit arising from the deemed distribution to shareholder
which represents the cash consideration of the acquisition of UHL of
HK$70,000,000 (equivalent to RMB55,595,000) paid to the vendor during the
year ended 31 March 2014 (see note 2 to the consolidated financial statements).

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") and the Articles of Association of certain subsidiaries of
the Company, they are required to provide for PRC statutory reserves, by way
of appropriations from their respective statutory net profit (based on their
PRC statutory financial statements) but before dividend distributions. They are
required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the statutory reserves.
The appropriation to the statutory surplus reserve may cease if the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the registered capital of the
relevant companies. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up prior
year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by means of a
capitalisation issue. However, when converting the statutory surplus reserve into
capital, the remaining balance of such reserve must not be less than 25% of the

registered capital of the relevant companies.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulation, certain subsidiaries are required to
transfer a certain percentage based on a progressive rate on revenue generated
from manufacturing and transportation of gas or other dangerous chemical
into a designated fund. The fund will be used for installation and repair and
maintenance of safety facilities. The movement during the year represents the
difference between the amounts provided based on the relevant PRC regulation

and the amount utilised during the year.

Heng Gas Holdings Limited JTF#AGIER AR AR

Annual Report 2016 3
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z-—REZA=1+—HLFE

2016 2015
—E—REF —RF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBT T
Operating activities BEERK
(Loss) profit before tax KA AT (EE ) SR (6,086) 29,418
Adjustments for: BRI EIEVE L FEE
Depreciation of property, W - BB REHEZ
plant and equipment e 65,334 63,191
Amortisation of intangible asset A E 2 B 393 393
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments AR E R 2 B 1,362 1,403
Net loss on fair value change of BRARTETEAFE
embedded derivatives HE) s BEFE 2,363 =
Exchange difference ME =58 1,085 -
Finance costs Bh& A A 48,451 70,562
Interest income A EBA (45,248) (20,092)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEME  BER
plant and equipment =i (a ) Erte (70) 164
Share of results of associates S NG (4,224) (462)
Operating cash flows before movements  &E& £ & B)F] 2
in working capital REeWEnE 63,360 144,577
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERDGEM) 19,587 (16,730)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other B 5 N E b e U BR 3
receivables (340 ) (537,103) 817,165
Decrease in amounts due FEW B BEE A T RKIE
from related parties VR 2,443 30,885
(Increase) decrease in amount due JE U — R M‘J‘Eﬂj
from a non-controlling equity owner — IR ERER
of a subsidiary AZRIE (I 00) 5 (1,690) 3,745
Increase (decrease) in trade and ”’%&E{ﬁfgﬁﬁﬁﬂ’
other payables 1% jJU(/JESZ >) 743,959 (1,024,867)
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to il NI E
associates (/WQ) 0 (19,107) 21,972
Cash generated from (used in) operations K& P75 (FTHE)IRE 271,449 (23,253)
Income tax paid EFrEH (20,352) (20,784)
Net cash from (used in) operating activities #&& 25115 (FTFE) 238
] 251,097 (44,037)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,ﬂ'\ Iﬁimni%

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z—REZA=1+—HLFE

2016 2015
—E—RF —ET—hF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBTT
Investing activities BREEE
Purchase of property, plant and BEMX BB L&RE
equipment (10,665) (48,836)
Purchase of land use right fE B b A - (652)
Purchase of short-term investments BEREEE - (101,000)
Proceeds from redemption of short-term (BB HIR & 7 FT15 208
investments 19,500 110,000
Capital injection to an associate A —fREE R ENEE (40,000) =
Acquisition of an associate Hﬂl,ﬁﬁ—%ﬁﬂé‘?%@\ﬁj (20,000) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, Hj%%¥ - BEREEZ
plant and equipment FiSsk18 1,053 112
Advance to a former equity owner of BRTHBAR—%
subsidiaries AR EA A = (279)
Advance to a non-controlling equity BRTHBRR—%
owner of subsidiaries FEEBRERER A = (218)
Repayment from a non-controlling equity  Ff/& A 7] — & JEIEARHERS
owner of subsidiaries BEAZER 250 -
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits R EERRITER 1,057,766 1,033,233
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABBHIEITER (964,276) (1,153,461)
Interest received 2 U Fl B 38,683 13,545
Net cash from (used in) investing activities R &/EEFTS(FIRE)IRE
e 82,311 (147,552)
Financing activities i 25 5 B
Dividend paid to a non-controlling equity ZftF— BRG] —%
owner of a subsidiary 3|5T fxiEmEB AL
(3,328) (2,000)
Repayment to a shareholder ﬁﬂx?%?ﬂ (6,105) =
Repayments of obligations under EERRERAAE
finance leases (2,315) (7,277)
Proceeds from issue of shares ?*TTHQTQZF)’T?%W 190,495 =
Repayments of bank borrowings 155@?&171 (1,000,544) (1,043,450)
New bank borrowings raised %ﬁi'fﬁfﬂtiat% 487,931 1,019,345
Proceeds from issue of convertible bond ?ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ\ﬁﬁfﬁ%’Zﬁﬁ%
TRIB 63,492 -
Acquisition of additional interest W s — I BT B8 R )
in a subsidiary FHIMER (3,445) =
Advance from non-controlling equity —F'EWTE GE2)
owner of a subsidiary T %E}\Zﬁy)\ 10,000 -
Interest paid BEIHE (34,792) (70,147)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBFTFE IR E 5 (298,611) (103,529)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and BeRB&SERAZ
cash equivalents B’/ d )P 34,797 (295,118)
Cash and cash equivalents at the REMZHRER
beginning of the year Re%¥EEH 26,064 321,890
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EF&EEHZHE 268 (708)
Cash and cash equivalents at the RERZHAER
end of the year Re&®EHRE 61,129 26,064

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited JTZ ARIERAR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R A B EHRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z-—REZA=1+—HLFE

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public
limited company incorporated in Bermuda and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section in the annual report.

Upon the completion of the mandatory unconditional cash
offer on 3 January 2011, Frontier Global Group Limited
("Frontier Global”) which is ultimately controlled by Mr. Wang
Jianging (“Mr. Wang"”), acquired 71.5% of the aggregate
issued share capital of the Company, and Frontier Global
and Champion Golden Limited then became the immediate
holding company and ultimate holding company of the
Company, respectively. Both Frontier Global and Champion
Golden Limited are limited liability companies incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

Upon the completion of the acquisition of a subsidiary and the
issue of new shares on 16 May 2014, as set out in note 2 (the
"Acquisition”), the immediate holding company and ultimate
holding company of the Company were changed to Champion
Ever Limited, which is a limited liability company incorporated
in the BVI and is wholly-owned by Mr. Wang.

The Company together with its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “"Group”) is principally engaged in the
trading of oil and gas products (by entering into oil and gas
sales and purchase contracts with a number of counterparties)
and provision of related consultancy services. Starting from 16
May 2014, upon the completion of the Acquisition, the Group
is also engaged in the production and sale of liquefied natural
gas ("LNG"), operating vehicle gas refueling station, sales
of piped gas, LNG transportation and construction of gas
pipeline infrastructure.

Upon the completion of the Acquisition, the functional
currency of the Company has changed from Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD") to Renminbi (“RMB") as the primary economic
environment of the Company changed to a PRC business
environment. Following the change of functional currency
of the Company, the Company changed the presentation
currency of its consolidated financial statements from HKD to
RMB. The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
this could simplify the financial reporting process and it could
provide users with more comparable information with other
companies in similar industries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z—REZA=1+—HLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Acquisition of Union Honor Limited (“UHL"”) and the
adoption of merger accounting

On 28 October 2013, the Group entered into an agreement
with Ying Hui Limited (“Vendor"”) and Vendor’s shareholders,
pursuant to which the Group conditionally agreed to acquire
and the Vendor conditionally agreed to dispose of the sales
shares, representing the entire issued share of UHL, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Vendor, at the total consideration
of HK$2,861,775,000. Both the Vendor and UHL are limited
liability companies incorporated in the BVI.

Mr. Wang, the ultimate shareholder of the Company, has
equity interest of 62.89% of the Vendor and has control over
the Vendor. On 17 March 2014, the Group entered into a
supplemental agreement (“Supplemental SPA") with the
Vendor and the Vendor's shareholders pursuant to which the
consideration of the Acquisition was revised to approximately
HK$3,068,246,000. According to the Supplemental SPA,
the total consideration of the Acquisition was satisfied
by (i) cash consideration of HK$70,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB55,595,000); (ii) HK$2,998,246,000 by procuring the
Company to issue and allot to the Vendor's shareholders of a
total 4,283,209,057 shares (“Consideration Shares”) at an issue
price of HK$0.70 per Consideration Share. During the year
ended 31 March 2014, cash consideration of HK$70,000,000
(equivalent to RMB55,595,000) was paid, which was deemed
to be a distribution to shareholders.

The Acquisition was approved by the shareholders of the
Company in a special general meeting held on 8 May 2014
and was completed on 16 May 2014.

Mr. Wang obtained the control of the Company since the
completion of mandatory unconditional cash offer on 3
January 2011 as stated in note 1, and on 11 January 2013, Mr
Wang obtained the control of the Vendor and UHL. As such,
the Group and UHL are under common control of Mr. Wang.
The Acquisition of UHL was reflected in the consolidated
financial statements using the principle of merger accounting,
taking into consideration of the requirements under
Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations”, as if they had been combined from
the date when the combining entities first came under control
of Mr. Wang.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA MBS ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z-—REZA=1+—HLFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Going concerns

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful considerations
to the future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that as
at 31 March 2016, its current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by approximately RMB115,353,000. Taking into account
of (i) the internally generated funds, (ii) the available long-
term loan facilities of RMB490,004,000 and RMB37,000,000
with maturity up to August 2018 and May 2022, respectively,
pursuant to the relevant facilities documents, the directors
of the Company are confident that the Group will be able
to meet its financial obligations when they fall due in the
foreseeable future and be able to operate on a going concern
basis.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following amendments to

HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time in current year:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010 - 2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2011 - 2013 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosure set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'’

HKFRS 16 Leases®

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from contracts with
customers'

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®

Disclosure Initiative®

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation®

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle®

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Investment Entities:
Applying the Consideration
Exceptions?®

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative®

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax

Assets for Unrealised Losses®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ST e IS ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z-—REZA=1+—HLFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or
after 1 January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to
include the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly
to include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and
b) limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a 'fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for
certain simple debt instruments.
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All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

3. BRI REEITERVITER
%;iﬁ)ﬁll(réiﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁ%iﬁﬁll 1)
b=

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle of
an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on the
amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 9 until the Group performs a detailed review.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts
and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2:  ldentify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4.  Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies

a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group's
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate that the application of the other new or revised
HKFRS, will have material impact on the amounts recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

“Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(the "CO").

The provision of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’
reports and audits became effective for the Company for the
financial year ended 31 March 2016. Further, the disclosure
requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding annual
accounts have been amended with reference to the new CO
and to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation
and disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2016 have
been changed to comply with these new requirements.
Comparative information in respect of the financial year
ended 31 March 2015 are presented or disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements based on the new
requirements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
where the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group's voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or another measurement basis required by
another standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Merger accounting for business combinations involving
entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination occurs
as if they had been combined from the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the control
of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control, where this
is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination. The comparative amounts in the
consolidated financial statements are presented as if the
entities or businesses had been combined at the end of the
previous reporting period or when they first came under
common control, whichever is shorter.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata basis
base on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associates. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods, which includes wholesale of
LNG, vehicle gas refuelling stations and sales of piped gas, is
recognised when goods are delivered and titles have passed,
at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from provision of services, which includes
construction of gas pipeline infrastructure and LNG
transportation, is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Turnover of the Group includes the gross proceeds from
oil and gas sales contracts, revenue from sales of good and
revenue from provision of services.

Operating costs includes the gross amounts of oil and
gas purchase contracts, cost of sales of goods and cost of
provision of services.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purpose other than construction
in progress are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
value over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that
ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the consolidated statement of financial position as a finance

lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance
with the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a

reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowing
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected

to reverse in the foreseeable future.

74 Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited JTZARIERAR A A
Annual Report 2016 3§

4.

FEERTHR(R)

FE
PS5 S T 48 35 e FE A AR 18 MO RE R
TH 2 4258 o

BPFARIE

IR FE N A TR T iR O A R AR T A
B ERP N REa R REMEE
WA 252 [BRBE AR |18 i
Bl - TR EEAMEE 2 BRI A
FTHRZWARSTHIAR A FKERE
AR 2B - NEEZBHIFIR
AREMREDEXER FEERI L
ZHEFEHE -

EIER IR
BEERBEN RGN RRANEERA
B2 REERRR G E RS 218
FETREME R 2 B =M T AR -
EXERARE R AR E =
BT ARER - WA BEHIRAT B A 2 I8
aRit A AR SH P8 AT N A R
AIREHRIREE — R ZFRARTE R
ERRM T AR o W E R BN —IHEE
TEERRB G ZEEHRN 2
RHFERER(TEERERAH)H
EERAEMELERZE  AZE
BEMBETSHRER

BEEREAGETIRNHB AR REER
BB Z BRI E S ZR T AR -
HEAR SR B R R B B Z R 2 B m DA
TR ZBN A AR SR AR R E 215
SUTERSN - HEZFRE M EmERRZ
AR TR EEmEL CRENIREE
EERAI s AR BB Z ERT
RAEINEREZRN G BEERNAIER
RRBER 2 IERT - 78 TIAER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA MBS ERARMEE

aN=!

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z-—REZA=1+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statements of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately to
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of
the two categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"”) and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(Continued)

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excluded
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets and
is included in the “other gains” line item in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
The dividend or interest earned on the financial assets is
included in the "other income” line item in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 7.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, long-
term receivables, amounts due from non-controlling equity
owners of subsidiaries, amounts due from related parties,
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EEGRTBUR(HE)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) TETE ()
Loans and receivables (Continued) ERREKRERR(E)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TREEZE(E)

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivable, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivable, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified either as financial liabilities or as equity
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amount due to an associate, amounts due to a shareholder,
amount due to a non-controlling equity owner of a subsidiary,
and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain both
the liability and conversion option components exercisable
at the discretion of the holder. Conversion option that will
be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Group’s own equity instruments is a conversion option
derivative. Conversion option derivative is treated as
embedded derivatives and are remeasured to fair value at
the end of reporting period, with the resulting fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. At the date of issue,
both the liability and embedded derivatives components
are recognised at fair value using discounted cash flow and
Binomial Option Pricing Model, respectively.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and embedded derivatives
in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs
relating to the embedded derivatives are charged to profit
or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the convertible
bonds using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the
amount of obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the revenue recognition policy.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Embedded derivatives

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately (see the accounting policy in respect
of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contributions retirement benefit
plans are recognised as expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the management of the Group
has made various estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on past experience, expectation and
other information that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment at 31
March 2016 and 2015 amounted to RMB837,086,000 and
RMB882,441,000, respectively. Property, plant and equipment
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives, after taking into account the estimated residual
value. The Group assesses annually the residual value and
the useful life of the property, plant and equipment and if
the expectation differs from the original estimates, such
differences from the original estimates will impact the
depreciation charges in the year in which the estimates
change.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The carrying value of goodwill at 31 March 2016 and 2015
amounted to RMB56,740,000. Determining whether goodwill
is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of
the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
Details of the calculation of the recoverable amount are set
out in note 22.

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group makes impairment of trade and other receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of receivables.
Impairment loss are applied to trade and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible or when the net present
value of the receivable is less than the carrying amount of the
receivable. The identification of impairment loss requires the
use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation on the
recoverability of trade and other receivables is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of trade and other receivables and the impairment in the
reporting periods in which such estimate has been changed.
As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the carrying amount of trade
and other receivables is amounted to RMB1,581,886,000 and
RMB1,017,628,000, respectively.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

The carrying value of deferred tax assets at 31 March 2016
and 2015 amounted to RMB4,818,000, and RMB1,301,000.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for the unused tax losses
or deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit or taxable temporary
difference will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Management estimation is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
or taxable temporary difference together with future tax
planning strategies.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts (which
include amounts due to associates, amount due to non-
controlling equity owner of a subsidiary, bank borrowings,
obligations under finance leases and convertible bond
disclosed in notes 34, 36, 37, 38 and 40 respectively, net
of cash and cash equivalents) and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As a part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issue, the issue of new debts
or the redemption of existing debt.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

7. &#mMTH

(a)

TETASHE
2016 2015
—E—REFE —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARET T

Financial assets SMEE
Loans and receivables B EIRER R

(including cash and cash (BEAeRESEEER)

equivalents) 1,429,182 1,035,550
Financial assets designated as at fair f§FEIRAFEFTAEBRZ

value through profit or loss RIEE - 19,500
Financial liabilities &MAR
Amortised cost b DN 2,110,065 1,721,503
Embedded derivatives BMARLTAET AR 12,941 -

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BEEREEBEEZEEEZERHE

The Group’s major financial instruments are trade and

other receivables, amount due from a non-controlling

equity owner of subsidiaries/a subsidiary, long-term

receivables, amounts due from related parties, short-

term investments, pledged bank deposits, cash and

cash equivalents, trade and other payables, amounts

due to associates, amount due to a non-controlling

equity owner of a subsidiary, bank borrowings and

convertible bond. Details of these financial instruments

are disclosed in respective notes.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

The management monitors and manages the financial
risks relating to the operations of the Group through
internal risk assessment which analyses exposures by
degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk, other price risk and commodity price risk), credit
risk, and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are sets out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Save as the short-term investments disclosed in note 31,
which was invested for the purpose of better utilisation
of temporary idle cash, the Group does not enter into
any trade financial instruments, including derivative
financial instruments, for hedging or speculative
purpose. There has been no significant change to the
Group's exposure to these kinds of risks or the manner in
which it manages and measures.

Market risk

The Group's activities expose primarily to the market
risks of changes in interest rates. There has been no
significant change to the Group’s exposure to market
risks or the manner in which it manages and measures
the risk over the years.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7.
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk management
Certain subsidiaries of the Company have entered into
certain foreign currency transactions, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of reporting period are as follows:

&MTA(E)

(b)

BERBEZRFERKE (&)

TSR (&)

SR B HE
ARBBLZEMBARCAILA
THNER S - BEA KB @RI
EEN

R|BEHR - NEBELSMNESHE
ZEREERERAB L REE
wmr

Assets Liabilities
BE afE

2016 2015 2016 2015

—E—RE —T-—FHE ZB—RFE —T—0E

RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR#®TRE ARETT AER®BTRE ARETT
United States dollars EVRGE D)

("UsD") 9,480 154,260 64,612 152,895
Hong Kong dollars BB rxl)

("HKD") 1,323 1,083 - -

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (2015: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB (functional
currency of the relevant entities) against relevant
foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5 % (2015: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. 5% (2015: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. A positive (negative) number
below indicates an increase (decrease) in profit for the
year where RMB weakening 5% against the relevant
currencies.

TREIAEEHARE (AR
ERZEES) LERMINE LT
RTBS%(ZT—RF : 5%) 28
BREFE - HRESITERTEN
SNEFTEZHAXNERIEAR -
WS AR IAINE [ R B F)5%
(ZZ2—0F : SRFERAE -
5%(—F—h%F :5%)IAETEE
B ABRE2|INE RER R
ZHBRELE  URKREEEYH
SMNEER ARSI B F) 2 5P E o
TXEB)BRTARBLER
SN B2 (B.5% P B H AN 4 2k ) 48
mORD) »
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. £MIA(E)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)) BIBEBREEEERKE (&)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) G E B (#8)
Foreign currency risk management (Continued) SPE R i ETHE (48 )
The Group's operating cost includes: REBEERANBIE
2016 2015
—EB-REF —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#®TT ARBTT
usD e
Impact on the profit for the year HARFE RN 28 (2,757) 51
HKD BT
Impact on the profit for the year HARF G F 2 & 55 45

For a 5% strengthens of RMB against the relevant
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the profit for the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to its fixed rate pledged bank deposits, long-term
receivables, amount due from a non-controlling equity
owner of subsidiaries and fixed rate bank borrowings.
The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
However, the management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate on bank balances and the variable rate on bank
borrowings which carry at prevailing deposit interest
rates and variable rate based on the interest rates
quoted by the People’s Bank of China.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been prepared
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
bank balance and bank borrowings at the end of each
reporting period which was assumed to be outstanding
for the whole year and the stipulated change taking
place at the beginning of the financial year and held
constant throughout the year in the case of instruments
that have floating rates. A 50 basis points increase or
decrease for variable rate bank borrowings is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represent management’s assessment of

the reasonably possible change in interest rate.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by 50
basis points in respect of bank borrowings and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's profit would
decrease/increase by approximately RMB374,000 (2015:

RMB434,000) for the year.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by 50
basis points in respect of bank balance and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's profit would
increase/decrease by approximately RMB305,000 (2015:

RMB78,000) for the year.

The Group does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest

rate exposure should the need arise.

7. @mMTR(E)

(b)
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Other price risk
The Group is exposed to price risk on embedded
derivatives components of the convertible bond for the
years ended 31 March 2016 as set out in note 41.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group are
required to estimate the fair value of the derivative
components of the convertible bond (the conversion
option), with changes in fair value to be recognised
in the profit or loss as long as the convertible bond
is outstanding. The fair value will be affected either
positively or negatively, amongst others, by the changes
in the Company's share price and share price volatility.

Sensitivity analysis
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
10% higher and lower in the share price of the Company

(b)

7. &@RIR(H)
DA EE A ERBE (M)

H R4 R b2

WHEAE  BE_T—RF
ZA=Z+-BLEEE  AKE@E
EEE@T%H&E%“\ZEU\EWTEI
AR DB HOERRER

BE-F—AF=A=+—ALt
- REEREENOTRRE
% AR BRI AT
ATAHS CRBEEE) 02
TiE - WEBENERATES

g AFESX(EFBE)AA
&) % B B B I i% {8 )% ) /9 1E sk
EEZE .

HEE T

TRAFLARNEB S A QRRE L
FREE10% - MiEERAAE

and all other input variables of the valuation model were Huog AEE @S TE 2 GUXE -

held constant.
10% higher 10% lower
LFH10% TRE10%

2015 2016 2015

—E—RE —RF ZE—RF —T—AF

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRE ARETT AR®TRT ARBTT

(Decrease) increase in  ANFE A (R4 )& A0 N/A N/A

the profit for the year (4,518) T iEA 3,941 TiEA

In management'’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis above
is unrepresentative of the inherent price risk as the
pricing model used in the valuation of these embedded
derivatives involves multiple variables and certain
variables are interdependent.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Commodity price risk

The Group is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in
prevailing market commodity prices of oil and gas
products as the Group entered into oil and gas purchase
and sales contracts with its customers and suppliers. The
Group manages these commodity price risks through
entering into oil and gas purchase and sales contracts
within a short period of time. Accordingly, the Group
minimises its exposure to such risk and is subject to
short term price fluctuations in the prevailing market
commodity prices in the intervening periods between
entering into the oil and gas purchase and sales

contracts.

The Group does not exposed to commodity price risk
as all sales and purchase oil contracts entered with
counterparties during the year ended 31 March 2016
are completed before the year end date. However, the
Group had one sales and one purchase oil contracts
which were entered into with the counterparties closed
to 31 March 2015 and the delivery was made in early
April 2015, the commodity price risk is considered as

minimal.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to perform an obligation by the counterparties arises
from the carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statements

of financial position.

The management closely monitors its credit exposure
by implementation of policies for necessary follow-up
actions to minimise its credit risk throughout the year. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amounts of
amounts due from each counterparty at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment

losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. €T R(E)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks in the PRC with high credit
rankings.

The credit risk on bills receivables are insignificant
because all bills receivables are bank acceptance bills
issued by state-owned banks and aged within 180 days
at the end of each reporting period.

The credit risk on long-term receivables as set out in
note 25 is limited because the counterparty is reputable
in the industry. The long-term receivable due within one
year as set out in note 25 has been settled after the year
ended 30 March 2016 according to agreed payment
schedule.

The Group is exposed to significant concentration
of credit risk on trade receivables arisen from oil and
gas transactions, with exposure spread over certain
counterparties and customers. The Group, through
the Company's five (2015: three) subsidiaries, entered
into a number of contracts to purchase and sell oil and
gas. In general and as part of the Group's prudent
measures, a short duration is kept between each buy
and sell transaction. Such oil and gas contracts involve
thirteen (2015: seven) suppliers and fourteen (2015:
eight) customers, eleven (2015: six) suppliers and ten
(2015: seven) customers of which are independent
from the Group. For the year ended 31 March 2016,
approximately RMB4,802,492,000 (85% of total
gross amount of oil and gas sales contracts) (2015:
approximate RMB2,920,220,000 (61% of total gross
amount of oil and gas sales contracts)) of contracts that
are settled in cash on a gross basis are entered into with
one single customer which is a third party.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z-—REZA=1+—HLFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

As part of the measures to mitigate the credit
concentration risk, each individual debtor has been
monitored closely and on an ongoing basis. In addition,
gross amounts of oil and gas sales contracts are settled
either by letter of credit or bills issued by the customers’
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies and are receivable with an
average credit period ranging from seven days to six

months after the bills of lading date of delivery.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use
of borrowings. The management closely monitors the
liquidity position of each company within the Group and
expects to have adequate sources of funding to finance

the Group's operations.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given careful
considerations to the future liquidity of the Group in
light of the fact that as at 31 March 2016, its current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB115,353,000. Taking into account of (i) the internally
generated funds, (ii) the available long-term loan
facilities of RMB490,004,000 and RMB37,000,000 with
maturity up to August 2018 and May 2022, respectively,
pursuant to the relevant facilities documents, the
directors of the Company are confident that the Group
will be able to meet its financial obligations when they
fall due in the foreseeable future and be able to operate

on a going concern basis.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z—REZA=1+—HLFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

7.

eMIA(E)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HEREEEEEEREKE (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) R & S (1)
The following tables detail the Group's contractual TRFNANEBSRHREBEZAL
maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables have been ZNERIE N c Z KR VIR EANEE A
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of BRI EEHEMEBEEZSRA
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which BZzARUEBRBEeREMGER - ~
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes RBENBEAEZIRERE °
both interest and principal cash flows.
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average or within undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 60 days 61-180 days 181-365days  1-2years  2-5years Over5years  cash flows amount
i REXHY FRARS
Figfi% R6OEM 61180  181E365% 152% 2B5% SERE RESE BaE
% RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARRTRT ARRTR ARRTT ARRTR ARWMTT ARMTR ARWTT ARRTR
As at 31 March 2016 RZE-XEZA=+-A
Non-derivative financial it aMAR
liabilities
Trade and other payables B REMEMER = 1,853,526 = = = = - 1853526 1,853,526
Amount due to an associate  JEfT— B ATHE - 3,203 - - - - - 3,203 3,203
Amount due to a non- R -FHHEAR
controlling equity —LHERERERA
owner of a subsidiary Fos 9.24 10,000 - - - - - 10,000 10,000
Obligations under finance RARNAE
leases 6.9 282 565 327 - - - 1174 1,115
Convertible bond TRES 16.64 - 1,942 1,932 66,749 - - 70,623 56,054
Bank borrowings BileE
- fixed rate — IR 3.73-7.20 28,529 32,940 41,016 - - - 102,485 99,282
- variable rate — F)f% 5.34-6.60 865 25,313 9,786 34,284 19,478 7,355 97,081 88,000
Financial quarantee contract HBERED - - 60,000 - - - - 60,000 -
1,896,405 120,760 53,061 101,033 19,478 7,355 2,198,092 2,111,180
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z-—REZA=1+—HLFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. &@MTR(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BIBREREERZERKE (&
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) R & S (1)
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average or within Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 60days  61-180days  181-365 days 1-2 years 25 years Syears  cash flows amount
g RERKH ARRE
FaHE REORA  61Z180K  181E365K 1225 1555 SENE REAE A
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
As at 31 March 2015 RZE-1FZA=t-H
Non-derivative financial it aMAR
liabilities
Trade and other payables ZHREMERER - 993,193 - - - - - 993,193 993,193
Amount due to an associate R —HBERAFE - 2310 - - - - - 22310 22310
Amount due to a shareholder BN —BRRFE - 6,105 - - - - - 6,105 6,105
Obligations under finance REBARE
leases 5.76-1.56 - - 6,104 1,462 - - 7,566 6933
Bank borrowings HiTEE
- fixed rate — EEflx 2.50-7.84 5290 396,721 210,162 - - - 612,179 597,895
- variable rate — FEfx 6.00-6.78 24,757 28,322 4,625 12,691 34,953 11,873 17,221 102,000
Financial guarantee contract Bt ERAN = = - - 60,000 - - 60,000 -
1,051,655 425,049 220,891 74,153 34,953 11,873 1,818,574 1,728,436
The amounts included above for financial guarantee N EMBIEREANESE i
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could EROZTSHFRER @ K&

be required to settled under the arrangement for the
full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of the reporting period, the Group considers
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of likelihood that the financial receivables held
by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit

|osses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at

the end of each reporting period.

BELZHETEZ T2 HBERKIE
M=t  BRESHREHERD
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BERNUBERREZEEE
9&5? C HITEZERO A M S
A o
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
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T-RFZA=t—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7.

(c) Fair values

Fair value of the Group’s material financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured at fair

value on a recurring basis
Some of the Group’s material financial asset and
financial liability are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these
financial asset and financial liability are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used),
as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised (levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the fair value is

observable.

Fair value as at

&M A(E)

(c) 2FE
BREFERELUATFEAEZSF
KEEXeHMEEREMARZ
LFE
AEBETERSREERE A
BEINEREHRUARFET
E-TREMLEHEEZETEH
BEREBRABEAFENTTACL
H R PR 2 (B E R R AE) A
iR FEFEBAENTERER
RESAFEAEDIBRZATE

ER(E—ZEZE=HIZEH -

Valuation technique(s)

31 March 2015 Fair value hierarchy & key inputs
R-B-1%
ZAEt+-RZAFE DFEFH HERTRARBAE
Short-term investments RMB19,500,000 Level 2 Discounted Cash flow Model
(see note 31)
Future cash flows are estimated based on the
expected return of the structured deposits
RHRE(RME31) AE#19,500,0007T =15l ARRAEREA
BREFBUER BHRERBHEARALRE
Valuation Significant
Fair value as at Fair value  technique(s) unobservable
31 March 2016 hierarchy & key inputs input(s) Sensitivity
RIB—RE=A=1- HERTR
HZOHE LEEFR HEABAE EXTHRBAE BRBE
Embedded derivative Embedded derivative ~ Level 3 Binomial Option  Volatility of 47.96%  The higher the
components of convertible components of Pricing Model is applied in the volatility in share
bond convertible bond - convertible bond  price, the higher
RMB12,941,000 The key input is by reference to the  the change
share price, risk-  share price of the ~ embedded
free rate, timeto  company derivative
maturity, dividend components of
yield, and volatility convertible bond
AR ES 2 AaREF CRAR  E=RE “EASRTERR ﬁ@@ﬂ%%%@%%J&Eﬁﬁﬁ%*%ﬂ
RASSTETARD fTET AR mpRER(2E  ARESZEAR

— AE#12,941,0007

BRBAE: RE-  ARAZKRE) TELASH 28
HJ—L M*” @ng ﬁfffztrﬂ
%%$&§W“

There were no transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy during the year ended 31 March 2016 and

2015.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z-—REZA=1+—HLFE

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair values (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of
financial liabilities

The movement of embedded derivative component of
convertible bond is set out in note 41.

The loss on fair value change of embedded derivatives
of HK$2,841,000 (equivalent to RMB2,363,000) (see
note 12) included (i) a fair value loss of HK$10,051,000
(equivalent to RMB8,235,000) on initial recognition;
and (ii) a fair value gain of HK$7,210,000 (equivalent to
RMB5,872,000) relating to financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition.

In estimating the fair value of debt and derivative
components of convertible bond, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation of the debt component of convertible bond.
The directors work closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. In determining the valuation
assumptions and inputs, the directors take into account
the market-observable data as well as factors specific to
the Company's convertible bond, as follows:

o Dividend yield — estimated based on the historical
dividend yield of the Company at the end of the
reporting period;

o Risk free rate — referenced to the yield of Exchange
Fund Bills & Notes at the end of the reporting
period;

J Volatility — estimated based on the share prices of
the Company’s historical volatility;

o Share price — referenced to the share price of the
Company at the valuation date;

o Time to maturity — referenced to the remaining
years of the convertible bond.

7. &MTA(E)

(c)

AP ()
SHARE=RLTEHEZYH
i

AR % 2 AR T T AR
52 BBHRHTEL -

BARTEIAEAFEES 2
8518 52,841,00058 7T (MEE R A
R #2,363,00070 ) ( &M 7£12)
BREOVNREREQATFEEE
10,051,000 7t (HHE R A R
8,235,000 7t ) : R (i) ¥ 1A & R
rEEFREHAREZAFEHTE
ZemAaBEEEc A FEKSE
7,210,000 8 T (HHE R AR
5,872,0007T) °

REtARREFRZEBRITE
TEMO 2 A FER - AEEK
PR & E R TS A BR R
B WMARESE —RRIBWAE -
AEEERAE=aERMEE
B S AR AR B 5 2 BIS #B 0 1T
HE - EFEEEMINEFEERD
EEAEAEEARY S EGE
R EkEAE - EEERERR
REAER  EREFRMSH
EIREUE A M H AR R A 2R
BHFZARDT

o BEER-BAATREEH
KBS I8 K

o EREBRMNE-K2EREH
RINEESRBEREHFZE
B -
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o RIEB-RARTBEZESL
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair values (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of
financial liabilities (Continued)

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs
used in determining the fair value of various assets and
liabilities are disclosed above.

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values. The fair values of debt component of convertible
bond is derived using discounted cash flows at an
appropriate debt yield from comparable bonds in the

7. &EMTIR(E)

(c)

2FE(HE)
SHARE=RLAFEAEZY
IR ()

AREESEREERABAFE
ZEERMEBABZERRE
X -

Br ERAIeFl - EFRA - RER
BB RERTIREERAZALZ
TREENECRABCREEE
BOHERAYE ARREFAERE
M2 A FETERKT IS AL
RESF EEEHREERFTRLZ
BERERH -

markets.
2016 2015
—Z—-RF —T-RF
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
REE BFEE AREE NEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT AER®TRT AR%¥®TR ARETE
Financial liabilities fF&{
Debt component of AJIRR(ESH 2 & E 5
convertible bond 56,054 55,945 - -

The fair value of the debt component of convertible
bond categorised as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is
determined and using a debt yield of comparable bonds
by assuming the credit strength of the Company to be
CCC equivalent.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z-—REZA=1+—HLFE

8. TURNOVER 8. EX®
2016 2015
—E—R¥F —T—hEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFTT
The Group's turnover includes: AEBz EXFEBIE
Gross proceeds from oil and gas sales ARRRAREERLNZ
contracts (note) Frissa &5 (M) 5,656,698 4,820,390
Revenue from sales of goods: HESme e
— Wholesale of LNG — HBEBRIERAR 986,009 1,339,685
— Vehicle gas refuelling stations — RE IR, 1,295 23,001
— Sales of piped gas — HEBEEARAR 177,621 215,900
Revenue from provision of services: IR RS 2 Wz -
— LNG transportation — RIERARES 19,021 39,086
— Construction of gas pipeline infrastructure — 3% K AR & B EH R E 525 2,255
6,841,169 6,440,317

Note: The net income from oil and gas contracts for the year is RMB59,894,000
(2015: RMB8,789,000) which is derived from the gross proceeds from oil
and gas sales contracts of RMB5,656,698,000 (2015: RMB4,820,390,000)

minus the gross amounts of oil and gas purchase contracts of

RMBS5,596,804,000 (2015: RMB4,811,601,000).

iz : FRAABARRRARANDZBAFEAA
R#59,894000t (T —HF : ARK
8,789,00070) * BN AM R RKARE LB
TR AR5,656,698,0007C(—F—F
£ AR #4,820,390,0007T ) 5 A & KA
RIEE S X BT ARES,596,804,0007t (=
T—FF : AR¥4,811,601,0007T) °
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9. OPERATING COSTS 9. EERF
2016 2015
—E—REFE —ET—hF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFTT
The Group's operating costs include: AERZLEKABIE
Gross amounts of oil and gas purchase ARRRAREE A NERE
contracts 5,596,804 4,811,601
Cost of sales of goods HEERZKA 1,110,452 1,397,167
Cost of provision of services TR ARTS 2 B AR 28,258 41,322
6,735,514 6,250,090
10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. 3 EBE#E

The Group is organised into business units based on the types
of customers and methods used to distribute their products
and provide their services, based on which information is
prepared and reported to the chief operating decision maker,
the directors of the Company, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of performance. The accounting
policies of the reportable segments are the same as the
Group's accounting policies. The Group's operating and
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are

as follows:
Production and Wholesale of LNG
sales of LNG
Oil and gas Trading of oil and gas products (by
transactions entering into oil and gas sales and
purchase contracts) and provision of
related consultancy services
Other operations Vehicle gas refuelling stations, sales

of piped gas, LNG transportation
and construction of gas pipeline
infrastructure
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z-—R"F=-A=1T—HLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. P EPEE (1)
Segment turnover and results DESE KR FE
Year ended 31 March 2016 BHE—FT—NF=H=+—HIFFE
Production
and sales of Oil and gas Other
LNG transactions operations Total
SERME Ak
BEXARR XREXH Hfth & #at

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTRT ARWTT ARWTRT

Segment turnover from REINFER 2

external customers D ERE R 986,009 5,656,698 198,462 6,841,169
Intra-segment turnover D EffE & 5 225,760 - = 225,760
Segment turnover D EPE R 1,211,769 5,656,698 198,462 7,066,929
Elimination O] (225,760)
Total turnover P 6,841,169

I

Segment results DEEE (61,889) 44,819 22,071 5,001
Interest income B UL A 45,248
Share of results of FE(GHE & A A

associates ZEE 4,224
Finance costs LR N (48,451)
Unallocated corporate ROBEERS

expenses (12,108)
Loss before tax K EL R E1E (6,086)
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. P EREHE(#8)
Segment turnover and results (Continued) TESE AR EE(E)
Year ended 31 March 2015 BT AF=A=+—HIFE
Production
and sales of  Oil and gas Other
LNG transactions operations Total
EEREE NP
RIERAR RKARRS HAith k7 HEt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETIT ARETT ARBTIT AREBTRT

Segment turnover from REINPEP 2

external customers DEPERER 1,339,685 4,820,390 280,242 6,440,317
Intra-segment turnover D EffE R 486,543 - - 486,543
Segment turnover D EbE R 1,826,228 4,820,390 280,242 6,926,860
Elimination EAEi| (486,543)
Total turnover HEERR 6,440,317

—

Segment results DEEE 66,515 9,353 14,805 90,673
Interest income FEHA 20,092
Share of results of il NGl

associates E 462
Finance costs FELEZ7 N (70,562)
Unallocated corporate RAOBEEFERL

expenses (11,247)
Profit before tax & F R A 29,418
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERER
Information of the operating segments of the Group reported EREFELERREEERPEREK
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of ATl 2 AR RS B & 5 BB 8 B I
resource allocation and performance assessment does not SFARMEERER - Bt - HEZ7
include any assets and liabilities. Accordingly, no segment DEEBENBEEL -

assets and liabilities information are presented.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

10. FEBEH (&)

Other segment information E 5 S5 E#
Other segment information included in the measurement of FSTEDHEER D BEEFS 2 HibD
segment results and segment assets are as follow: EERUT
Production
and sales of Oil and gas Other
LNG transactions operations Total
EERME AR
BILXRR XR\EXH H R @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETRT AR+
For the year ended BE_Z—RX
31 March 2016 =A=+—H
L&
Additions to non-current NEIEREBEE
assets 1,720 621 18,621 20,962
Depreciation of property, M= - BE &
plant and equipment REZITE 44,146 9,093 12,095 65,334
Amortisation of intangible L& E 2 B4
asset - - 393 393
Amortisation of prepaid TEREE R 2 #EE
lease payments 1,121 126 115 1,362
Loss (gain) on disposal HEDE  WE
of property, plant and FiE 2 EE
equipment (Wezs) 28 (6) (92) (70)
For the year ended 31 BE_Z—AF
March 2015 =A=+—H
IEFE
Additions to non-current NEIEREBEE
assets 16,368 — 45,562 61,930
Depreciation of property, L/ E =N
plant and equipment B2 IE 49,731 103 13,357 63,191
Amortisation of intangible & E 2 B
asset - - 393 393
Amortisation of prepaid TE RS Tk 2 B
lease payments 1,131 — 272 1,403
Loss on disposal of HEWE - BER
property, plant and Biei=pd oti=|
equipment 164 - = 164
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

HEe—_Z—RFE=ZA=1+—

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

HIEFE

Geographical information

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's
segment turnover by geographical location of customers
irrespective of the origin of the goods delivered or services
rendered and the Group’s non-current assets by geographical

location of the assets:

2 E

10. P EBFEI(48)

TREHAKEIZE P R M w2
8 s AT IR AR TS 2 SRR 8 2
MEXBRAREREEMEMLEID 2
FEREBEEZ D -

P

Turnover
BXA

Production and sales of

LNG Oil and gas transactions ~ Other operations Non-current assets*
EERBERLRAR HRREARRS Rt ERBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
—Z-R% ZR-hF ZE-RE ZT-RE ZE-RE ZT-RE ZZ-RE —T-1f
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000
AERTE ARETT ARBTRE ARETR ARWTR ARETR AR®TRT ARETR
The PRC, other than HE (FBRA)

Hong Kong 986,009 1,339,685 2,223,640 333069 198,462 280,242 1,053,097 1,023,237
Singapore R - - 2,614,313 3244960 - - = -
Hong Kong B - - 611,560 906,516 - - 227 315
Korea B[ = - 207,185 335,845 - = - =

986,009 1,339,685 5,656,698 4820390 198,462 280,242 1,053,324 1,023,552
@ Non-current assets exclude amount due from a non-controlling equity e FRDEETBERUMBEAR 2Bk
owner of subsidiaries, long-term receivables and deferred tax assets. RS EE ARIE - REEKRIEBRE
ERBEE -
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about major customers
Production and sales of LNG and Other operations
Turnover arose from customers represents more than 10% of

10. P EBFIE(8)
FTEEFEH

SERBERICXAMLUR KR

HEEMBEERIERARREMERA
EEZBDEEBIORALZEPE

the total segment turnover from production and sales of LNG wammT
and other operations are as follows:
2016 2015
—E—R¥ —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#®TT ARBTT
Customer A Z2EA N/A (note)
225,264 TNEA (M)
Customer B ZFEB N/A (note)
165,211 @A (&)
Customer C =EC 121,719 202,814
Customer D 25D N/A (note)
38 F (P EE) 222,906
Customer E ZFE N/A (note)
A& (fEE) 489,434
512,194 915,154
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z-—R"EF=-A=1T—HLFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers (Continued)

Oil and gas transactions

Turnover arose from customers represents more than 10% of
the total segment turnover from oil and gas transactions are
as follows:

10. P EBFE(#E)

FEEFEHN(H)
ARRXRRXR

ERMMERRRRZEL ZBDHE
EFHI0RA L BEPEXRBNT ¢

2016 2015

—E—R%F —ET—AF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETTT

Customer F ZFEF 1,569,549 2,920,220

Customer G ZEG 1,523,192 N/A (note)

TiE R (&)

Customer H ZFEH 725,963 N/A (note)

T A (B EE)

Customer | =25 723,570 N/A (note)

@A ()

Customer J =FEJ N/A (note) 633,705
A5E A (BEE)

Customer K ZEK N/A (note) 540,147
& (EE)

4,542,274 4,094,072

Note: The corresponding turnover did not contribute over 10% of the total

segment turnover of the relevant segment.
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HE-Z-—R"F=-A=1T—HLFE

11. OTHER INCOME 11. Hfttlg A

2016 2015
—ZT—RE —E—hF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT

Interest income from KRBTSR ZFEHA
- banks —R7T 6,682 11,241

— a non-controlling equity owner of —BARZ —BIFER
subsidiaries =R A 2,618 2,611
— long-term receivables — REAFE WRIE 3,947 3,936
— advances to suppliers — Mt 19,163 =
- a related party ——BEWEEAL 12,838 2,304
45,248 20,092
Others Hih 1,331 2,627
46,579 22,719

12. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 12. Rt @ R GR

2016 2015
—S—R¥F —T—AfF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT

Gain (Loss) on disposal of property, plant  HEWE - BENREZ
and equipment Was (E518) 70 (164)
Net foreign exchange gain SN Y 2 % 5E 178 564

Loss on fair value change of BARTETAAFEESH 2

embedded derivatives (note 41) E1E (FisE41) (2,363) =
(2,115) 400
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HE-Z-—R"EF=-A=1T—HLFE

13. FINANCE COSTS

13. MBERLE
2016 2015
—E—RE —ERHEF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 2 S 33,083 70,147
Interest on convertible bond AR E S 2 K 8 3,764 =
Finance leases MERE 574 1,337
Total interest charges B 4Bz 37,421 71,484
Less: Amount capitalised in construction B ERTIRREERNL
in progress (note) SR (M) 1,054 922
36,367 70,562
Other finance costs (note 25) Hh g0 & AR (B EE25) 12,084 -
48,451 70,562

Note: The borrowing costs have been capitalised at rate of 6.6% and 6.6% for
the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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=

For the year ended 31 March 2016

HE—

14.

T XE=AST—AILER

INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) CREDIT 14. FiBR(ZH)ESR
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—HF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%®TT AREFIT
The (charge) credit comprises: (ZH)ERBFE :
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNEHR
— Current year —REE (285) (155)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") PR BRAEHR
(TexmBEH])
— Current year —KREEZ (32,013) (10,823)
— (Under) over provision in prior years —BEFEBEETR)
HRRR R (1,036) 13,176
(33,049) 2,353
Deferred taxation (note 27) EIERETE (P5E27)
— Current year —RNEEZ 19,399 (2,418)
— Effect of change in tax rate —MESEH I XE - 3,347
19,399 929
(13,935) 3,127

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

PRC EIT has been provided at the applicable income tax rate
of 25% on the assessable profits of the companies comprising
the Group during the years, except for certain subsidiaries of
the Group, namely SFEEZHTM 2 28 RAR 27 (“Xingxing
Energy”), MM EZEEIRAR QA (“Huixin Energy”) and &1
EZHRKREABR AR ("Huaheng Energy”) which are taxed at
concessionary rate in certain years.

FENEHIREMESE 2 A ER
BmMIR16.5% 2 BEFE -

AEEBET2R(RETFEREERN
ERMcAKEETHEBAR - BISP
REHMEERRBRAB([2ZE26
R - ENTEZBERERAR(E
BZER) MEMEFRIRREGRAA
(TEZ R DERIN RIBFE AR ZER
T a M| 2 3208 PR P 1S B A R 25% 3 7 B
ERAASHRIELEE -
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14.

114 Yuan

INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) CREDIT
(Continued)

During certain years as set out below, the applicable PRC EIT
concessionary rate for Xingxing Energy, Huixin Energy and
Huaheng Energy is 15%, which are under the preferential tax
treatment that given to companies established in the western
regions in the PRC and derived at least 70% of their total
income from their main business in oil and gas industry which
falling within the list of encouraged industries specified by the
PRC government.

Xingxing Energy was registered with the local tax authority
to be eligible to the reduced 15% enterprise income tax rate
from 2013 to 2020. Accordingly, Xingxing Energy is eligible for
the EIT of 15% (2015: 15%).

Huixin Energy was registered with the local tax authority to be
eligible to the reduced 15% enterprise income tax rate from
2012 to 2020. Accordingly, Huixin Energy is eligible for the EIT
of 15% (2015: 15%).

Huaheng Energy was entitled to a 15% preferential rate from
since its establishment on 24 June 2011 with no definite
period and subject to annual review and approval of local tax
authority.

Heng Gas Holdings Limited JTF#AGIER AR AR
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EHREEBRERIS% ZEHBEBAR=E
BERTERBRKIHABMEEZ
mEEE  BEHBRAZELTORKE
H 0w R RARITE (BN BB
HENBTTEREN) 2 T BEK -

EERRENEMMBIMAEE 8=
E——FRE-_FE-_TEAZZARE
15%MREMMSHME - FAit - 225
TRAIZ15%( ZE—HRF : 15%) T K
AN ZEFTETE o

EZERENEMRBIEL 8=
T——FRE T -TEAZZHRE
15% R EEFTISMALE - Fut - [EHEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z-—REZA=1+—HLFE

14. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) CREDIT
(Continued)
The income tax (expense) credit for the years can be BIBGEERMNEMEEWARE  F

14. RS R (ZH )ER(18)

reconciled to the (loss) profit before tax per consolidated

AZ St (S i) 5% AT 2 R 75 AT (8

statements of profits or loss and other comprehensive income 18) & FI SRR
as follows:
2016 2015
—E—-RF —T—HF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR#®TT ARBTTT
(Loss) profit before tax KR %t Al (&5 48 ) 3% F (6,086) 29,418
PRC EIT at 25% B25%HI R HAP B R
RS 1,522 (7,355)
Tax effects of share of profit of associates  JE(HEfZ N mla A 2 Bifg & 1,056 116
Tax effects of expenses not deductible NRAIHIF A S 2 Bl 5 2
for tax purpose (5,900) (8,209)
Tax effects of income not taxable BERMWAZRIEZE
for tax purpose 825 200
(Under) overprovision of PRC EIT in BEFEFRBRCEMEH
prior years (BEIR)BERE (1,036) 13,176
Tax effects of tax losses not recognised RIERZ RIS 2RI & (1,787) (2,989)
Effect of concessionary tax rates granted ETHENBARERESR
to certain PRC subsidiaries at 15% B2 2B (¥15%) (10,540) 4,989
Utilisation of tax losses or deductible BRI EES A ARERZ
temporary difference previously not AR E R EER
recognised 1,777 -
Decrease in opening deferred tax 38 FA B R TR PR T B B )
liabilities resulting from a decrease FERIEE ER D
in applicable tax rate - 3,347
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R EMFIEARERKLL 2 B
operating in other jurisdictions NCIPRNEIE -7 148 (148)
Tax (charge) credit for the year REEHIE(ZH)ER (13,935) 3,127
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15. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

15. ZFE(5R)EF

2016 2015
—E—RF —ET—hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived AREE(EIE) RN DKk
at after charging (crediting): (FFA) :
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEEN < 1,600 2,129
Amortisation of intangible asset B E B 2 393 393
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TEfSTHE K 2 B 5H 1,362 1,403
Cost of inventories recognised as ERAERI 2 FERA
an expense 1,110,452 1,397,167
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEREEZITE
equipment 65,334 63,191
Directors’ emoluments (note 16) EE=ME (E16) 3,853 3,265
Operating lease payment in respect BRARAYHE 2 LEHENK
of office premises 2,787 2,035
Salaries and other benefits TEREMER 50,003 47,997
Retirement benefits contributions BRIREFIER 4,827 4,829
Total staff costs (excluding directors’ 8 T KA 42%E
emoluments) (TBREESHNE) 54,830 52,826
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE BEMREZ
and equipment (lz) E548 (70) 164

Annual Report 2016 R
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BHE_ZT—RF=ZA=1+—HILFE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 16. EERITHARZHE
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, FREZERTHES ZNEREER £
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and new MR AR A FHEBIEENT ¢
CO, is as follows:
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-—E—RNF=ZA=1T—HILFE
Mr. Wang Mr. Bao Mr. Zhou
Jianqing Jun Jian Total
EFRBEEE KREXE RBREE et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB‘000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®BTRTE AR®TRT AER®TR

(note a)
(BiEa)
a) Executive directors a) BITES
Fees we 617 427 95 1,139
Other emoluments H b5
Basic salaries and HEAH &
allowance K EBhL 704 497 856 2,057
Contributions to retirement RRAE T
benefits schemes =HEIH 62 48 73 183
Total emoluments i< 4a%8 1,383 972 1,024 3,379
The executive directors’ fee and other emoluments shown EXFIRRTES 2R REMIEE
above were mainly for their services as directors of the EDRMEBEEARARAZEFUAREER
Company and services in connection with the management of NARAEEEHREZ RB M AT

the affairs of the Company and the Group, respectively.

Dr. Leung Mr. Wong Mr. Tom

Hoi Ming Chi Keung Xie Total
?ﬂ;ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ: EZE&S’EI WL #st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB‘000 RMB’000
ARWTRE ARWTRT ARWTRT ARWTRT

b) Non-executive directors b) FMITEE

Fees wE 142 190 142 474
Other emoluments Hib &
Basic salaries and AEAXEHS
allowance R - - - =
Contributions to retirement ﬂﬁiﬁﬂ
benefits schemes FTEIME R - = = -
Total emoluments B < 48 %8 142 190 142 474
The non-executive directors’ fee shown above were mainly for EXFRFNTET 2RSS EERHE
their services as directors of the Company. EARRBIEERE 2 RBEMA
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16. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2015

16. EERITHERZH & (18)

BEr—FE—FAF=H=+—HIEFE

Mr. Wang Mr. Bao Mr. Zhou Mr. Pan
Jianging Jun Jian Junfeng Total
B pita RELE BExRE BRELE ast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(note a) (note b)
(FiizEa) (i)
a)  Executive directors a) HfTEE
Fees e 553 353 62 119 1,087
Other emoluments Hivii &
Basic salaries and allowance EXHE
K28 672 375 502 = 1,549
Contributions to retirement RINEF
benefits schemes HEIMR 82 39 34 - 155
Total emoluments [t 1,307 767 598 119 2,791

The executive directors’ fee and other emoluments shown YR RHTES 2B N EMEN S
ESRMEEEARARTNEZTULREER

RARAKEEHRMEZ BRI M -

above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company and services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group, respectively.

Dr. Leung Mr. Wong Mr. Tom
Hoi Ming Chi Keung Xie Total
REABLE  wZEAAE HEREL @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT AREFT AREFTL ARETTT
b)  Non-executive directors b) FHRTEE
Fees ko 142 190 142 474
Other emoluments Hife
Basic salaries and allowance EXF ¢
B2 - - - -
Contributions to retirement benefits ERER
schemes Bl - - - -
Total emoluments & 4ass 142 190 142 474

EXFRRFHITES RS T ERELSE
EARRREFREHZRBMA -

The non-executive directors’ fee shown above were mainly for
their services as directors of the Company.
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16. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 16. EERITRARZHS (&)

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Note a: Mr. Wang Jianging is also the chief executive of the Company and his fista: ERBLEENMARRARZITHRESR  £X
emoluments disclosed above include those of services rendered by RE 2 HFG e iE e AT PRt
him as the chief executive. 7% < Fr B -

Note b: Mr. Pan Junfeng was resigned on 23 September 2014. Miztb : BERBEEENR-_ZT-—NFAA-T=H

BHE -
There were no arrangement under which a director or the FA - BEESERTHAHEFEXRE
chief executive waive or agreed to waive any remuneration IREE ] 5B 2 22k o

during the year.

17. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 17. EEM&
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments working TERAEE s  AEGEaTMALTZ
for the Group, three (2015: three) were the directors and o HA=Z2(ZZE—RF : =%)ATL
the chief executive of the Company whose emoluments are BARRRESRITHBE - miKkE 2
included in the disclosures in note 16 above. The emoluments SEINA EXHIF16ZHBEER - E5p
of remaining two (2015: two) individuals are fall within WMA(ZE—RHF : WE)ER AL ZEN
the band of not more than HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to T HE1,000,00078 7T (FEE R A
RMB787,790) and details were as follows: R#787,7907T) 2 €& - FIBEWAT

2016 2015

—E—R¥F “T-AF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARET T

Basic salaries and allowance R g & FKOREL 812 1,198
Contributions to retirement benefits RURAB N ET B K

schemes 84 70

896 1,268
18. DIVIDENDS 18. KRB

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed by the MIEFERNARR R EIRN « SIRsE
Company during both years, nor has any dividend been AR ARE - BB EHRE I EER
proposed since the end of the reporting period. IRHERIAR S ©
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19.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The weighted average number of shares used for the purpose
of calculating basic earnings per share for the both years
has been adjusted as if the Consideration Shares was issued
at 1 April 2013, on the basis that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared as if the UHL and its subsidiaries
("UHL Group”) had been combined from the date when UHL
Group first came under the control of the common controlling
party of the Company and UHL Group (see note 2).

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the
year is based on the profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company of approximately RMB9,676,000 (2015:
RMB19,251,000) and the weighted average number of
5,487,510,416 (2015: 5,302,801,915) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2016 does not assume the conversion of the
Company's outstanding convertible bond since their exercise
would not result in a decrease in earnings per share.

Diluted earnings per share was not presented for the year
ended 31 March 2015 as the Company did not have any
potential ordinary share during that year.
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AEEGRERBIIEARRESFE
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—FF : AR¥19,251,0007T) RER
B BT BRI T 19 505,487,510,416
R (=—Z—A% :5302,801,9158) &
=i

EHE T AFEZA=+—HIEF
[ 7 GRS 2 A R MR L RAR
AIRBEINAT R ES  BETERE
SIBEFBRAEFRD

HRARARNEBEE_ZT—HF=A
=t+— B FEYEEMEEERR -
BAEEINZFRE 2 BREERT -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

RA MBS ERARMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z-—REZA=1+—HLFE

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

20. 3%k - R R E

Furniture,
Plant and fixture and Construction
machinery  Buildings Pipeline Vehicles  equipment in progress Total
RER & RE e
] BF & 1] REf I# #t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
cost KR
At 1 April 2014 RZE-MENA—A 844,736 157,078 41,885 68,574 5,068 21336 1,138,677
Additions HE 51 587 - 692 594 58,894 61,218
Transfer Eovd 19,716 5175 36,746 - - (61,637) -
Disposals e (10) - - (1,573) (10) - (1,593)
At 31 March 2015 R-Z-H%F
=A=1-H 864,953 162,840 78,631 67,693 5,652 18,593 1,198,362
Additions AE 441 9% - 1719 172 18,536 20,962
Transfer b 10,245 559 - - - (10,804) -
Disposals te (660) - - (7,922) (109) - (8,691)
At 31 March 2016 RIE—RE
ZH=ET=H 874,919 163,493 78,631 61,490 5715 26,325 1,210,633
ACCUMULATED ZitiE
DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2014 R=E-MEMA-A 180,223 28,292 2373 39,893 3,266 - 254,047
Provided for the year FEEk 44,525 7,268 1,607 9,21 570 - 63,191
Eliminated on disposals R ER §) - - (1,306) (0) - (1,317)
At 31 March 2015 R_Z-1F
=B=1-H 204,743 35,560 3,980 47,808 3,830 - 315,921
Provided for the year EEEE 45,250 7,622 4,354 7,663 445 = 65,334
Eliminated on disposals R SR (69) - - (7,578) (61) = (7,708)
At 31 March 2016 RZE—nF
=R=t-H 269,924 43182 8,334 47,893 4214 - 373,547
CARRYING VALUES EE
At 31 March 2016 RZE—1E
=H=ET=H 605,055 120,311 70,297 13,597 1,501 26,325 837,086
At 31 March 2015 R=E-1%
=A=1-H 640,210 127,280 74,651 19,885 1822 18,593 882,441
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20.

21.

122 Yuan

T-RFZA=t—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20. Y% - BMER W ()
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for i BMENMXEEE (EEIRE
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line RO T =t R R EBE B AEE G
basis, taking into account residual value, over their estimated FEREHRRNATGEENE :
useful lives:
Plant and machinery 10 - 20 years TR B5 Bt B 102204
Buildings 20 years B3 204
Pipeline 20 years B 204
Vehicles 4 — 8 years E#f 4E8F
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 -5 years Rk~ B K& 3E5F
Vehicles with carrying value of RMB7,423,000 and E’\\_7 NERZZE-—RF=R=1—
RMB12,101,000 are held under finance lease as at 31 March CEBMERABEEZERE®EA
2016 and 2015, respectively. ﬁ Bl & AR #7,423,000 C & A R #
12,101,0007T °
Buildings with carrying value of RMB55,168,000 and )\5/:\;7 NERZZE-—RF=A=1—
RMB59,721,000 as at 31 March 2016 and 2015, respectively, N RFRBEZEFREES A A
located in the PRC are in the process of obtaining the building E?f{Z?SS 168,0007T &2 A & #59,721,000
certificates. REEFHNEERIEEREETF °
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 21. AFTHER
Prepaid lease payments represent land use rights in the FENHEREASBEESRTE 2 14
PRC obtained by the Group and are analysed for reporting FRE  RHREMEAIMEOT
purposes as:
2016 2015
—E—REF —hE
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFTT
Current assets MENEE 1,362 1,362
Non-current assets EMENE 38,671 40,033
40,033 41,395
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21.

22.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (Continued)
At 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group is in the process of
applying for the land use right certificate for a piece of land
located in the PRC amounting to approximately RMB3,462,000
and RMB3,538,000, respectively. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the Group is not required to incur
significant additional cost in obtaining the land use right
certificates for such piece of land.

21. FAHEER(E)

RN-E—RER_ZE—FRE=F=+—
B - NS B E AL B A — 18 1 i 5B
LI EREE  HEEDRINAAR
#53,462,0007T &2 A R # 3,538,000 °
RRAREERE AEE TS RHIEZ
8 o 3 2 4= b 5 R A 3B R B EE R REANK
$ °

GOODWILL 22. B8
Amount
&8
RMB’000
ARETIT
COST %
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 R-ZZE—MFM@MA—H -
—E-—RF=A=+-—HEK
—E-XRF=A=1+—H 56,740
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT Rt {E
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 R-_ZE—NFMYA—AH -
—E-—RF=A=+—HBHK
—E—RE=A=+—8H -
CARRYING AMOUNT IREE
At 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 R-ZE—RFE=A=+—HK
—E-—RF=A=1+—H 56,740

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to UHL and its subsidiaries which represent the
production and sales of LNG segment, together as one group
of cash generating units (“CGUs"), which represents the
lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes and is not larger than the
operating segment of production and sales of LNG, that are
expected to benefit from the business combination. As at 31
March 2016, the directors of the Company determined that
there is no impairment of its goodwill.

SURERHME - BRI KR
REMBAR(RREERBEER(ILR
RROE - HEEA—ERSELEN
(TREELEM AR - REAKEZ&
E&R)  EFEHESRANNEREN
MWER » TEARBIERAREER
HEZKEDH - MHIHZENELE
P RZB—REF=ZA=+—B &R
FAIZESETERME I MFEME -
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22.

GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the group of CGUs is determined
from value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling price
and direct costs during the projection period. The directors
of the Company estimate discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the group of CGUs. The
growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes
in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices
and expectations of future changes in the market.

The calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period,
and discount rate of 13.07% (2015: 16.27%) for the year ended
31 March 2016. The cash flows projections beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rates. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value
in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross margin,
such estimation is based on the unit’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.
The directors of the Company believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of the assets of the group of
the CGUs to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the
assets of the group of the CGUs.
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23. INTANGIBLE ASSET

The intangible asset of the Group represents a subsidiary’s
exclusive operating right of sales of piped gas to white
wine distillery factories located in Huairen City of Guizhou
Provinces in the PRC under a supplementary agreement
entered into among the subsidiary, another subsidiary of
the Company and E /MM R (& E ) B R & £ 2 & (Guizhou
Gas (Group) Co., Ltd) (“Guizhou Gas”), where Guizhou
Gas, which obtained an exclusive operating licences from
local government for the operation of sales of piped gas in
designated areas in Huairen City of Guizhou Provinces in the
PRC (“Designated Area”) over a period from the year 2007
to 2037, granted exclusive right to a subsidiary of the Group
to operate in the Designated Area. The intangible asset has
finite useful lives, and is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the remaining operating period of 21 (2015: 22) years.

23. B RE
AEBZENEEREZRRREAR
AZMBAR - Z—HBRRREMR
REE)EREEAR(TEMMRE )
REI R BHACRPEEMNEEC
M BBBREREEEEANRRZBR
g ERENRR(BRE R
ESETREEMERCTEEwR ([
iR DEEHETERARRZBRE
LR FHR-_ETHFE_T=L
FIEETAEE -—RHNBRRERETE
ez BREEHE - BIVEEARRE
REH  RMERZNBTRERH2NF
(ZZ2—R%F : 2F)N#H -

Operating right

EER
RMB’000
AREFIT
COST B
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and RZZE—MFEMA—H -
31 March 2016 —E—RF=A=+—HK
—E—RNE=HA=+—8 9,837
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION RETEEE
At 1 April 2014 RZE—MFEMA—H 492
Provided for the year FREE 393
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RF=A=+—H 885
Provided for the year FNEE 393
At 31 March 2016 RZE—XRF=A=+—H 1,278
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 31 March 2016 RZE—XRF=A=+—H 8,559
At 31 March 2015 R-E—RF=A=+—H 8,952
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24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 24. RBELAFIZHER
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TRT AREFIT
Cost of unlisted investment in associates REEE AR 2 IELETHIRE KA 106,735 30,000
Share of post-acquisition results FE(EUR 1% 345 4,686 462
111,421 30,462

The Group's principal associates accounted for using the

equity method and their details are as follows:

Place and date

Paid-in capital/

AEBZ T EBENEMEREDREA

B BHEFBWT

Effective equity

of incorporation/ registered interest attributable to
Name of associate establishment capital the Group Principal activities
HEM BItBR Blkx
BELFER B HMEE FREEGEREE IERH
2016 2015
—E-RFE —_T—AF
EMMRR(EB)RARZLE  PRC 25 July 2013 RMB350,000,000 20.0% 20.0%  Investment in
EEARAR (“Guiran (2015: LNG pipeline
Pipeline Company”) RMB150,000,000) infrastructure and
sales of piped gas
EMBR(EE)RARE  HE-T-=F+A AREE  200%  200% BRERLEAE
REBERLA —+4A 350,000,0007T BB AR R
(TEREELRA]) (Z2-8%F: AR HEBBAAR
#150,000,0007T)
SEZHHAREIRYR PRC 8 January 2007 RMB10,000,000 20.0% 20.0%  Provision of logistic
BRAFR service
("Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic”)
FRLITAREIRYR RE_TTEF AR 20.0% 20.0% REWTRRS
BERAR(NEZEWR]) —ANB 10,000,0007T
BMNBR(EE)BKEEEH PRC 12 July 2012 RMB40,000,000 49.7% - Sales of piped
RAM AT (“Xishui Jingiao gas
Company”)
EMNAR(EE)BKESBR PBE-_T——F AR 49.7% - HEEBRAR
RAERDA +A+=H 40,000,0007T

([BKEF/RF])
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24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 24. B LATIZEG(1E)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's BERAREBBENRZUEEREEEH
associates is set out below. BT o
Guiran Pipeline Company EREBRA

2016 2015
—E—RF —ZT—hF
RMB'000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Current assets TmENEE 288,322 176,586
Non-current assets IERBEE 503,988 301,779
Current liabilities mEE & (59,187) (26,056)
Non-current liabilities ERBAaE (367,413) (300,000)
2016 2015

—E—RE —E—REF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARET T

Total revenue 1Ak 25 157,836 91,804
Profit for the year REE 7 F 13,396 2,309
The Group's share of results of associate NEEFE(FBME AT 2 ¥E 2,680 462
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24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

24. RHELFIZHI(])

2016 2015
—E—-R%F —ET—RF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
Net assets of associate ENE 2 FEE 365,710 152,309
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEBREE N E G
interest in associate Wz 2 oA 20% 20%
The Group's share of net asset of AREEEEHE DT Z
associate FEE 73,142 30,462
In October 2015, the Group made a capital injection of R-ZFB—FE+H  AEERSREE
RMB40,000,000 to Guiran Pipeline Company without changing NELEE AERA40,000,0007T ¢ MK
the Group’s ownership interest in the associate. BN EF AL N T A RS o
Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic NZEIEYT
2016 2015
—NE —ET—RF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETTT
Current assets TENEE 38,154 28,589
Non-current assets IERBEE 8,979 11,461
Current liabilities mENEE (66,166) (60,679)
Non-current liabilities FmBAE = -
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BHE—

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

E-RFZA=t—HLFE

24. RHELFIZHI(])

2016 2015

—E—REF —ET—hF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBTT

Total revenue 1Al 25 29,745 32,863

Profit (loss) for the year NEEHF (EE) 1,600 (8,400)

The Group's share of result of associate REBEE(EBENR 2 EE - -

2016 2015

—NE —E—hF

RMB'000 RMB’000

AR®TIT AREFTT

Net liabilities of associate BNl 2 FaE (19,033) (20,629)
Proportion of the Group's ownership REBERBE N FEGE

interest in associate W Z bl 20% 20%
Less: unrecognised share of net liabilities A : REERFE(GHEE D F)

of associate FEARE 3,806 4,126

The Group's share of net liabilities of

associate

AEBREBZERARZFEE

The Group has discontinued recognition of the share of losses
of Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic as of the fact that Jiu An Shi Shun
Logistic's total liabilities exceeded its total assets.

AA/NE
BE -

AEECD K ILERRBEENLEIBYRZ
B
Ha

P

EIgYnR BB EBS
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24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 24 WREAFIZES(IE)
The amounts of unrecognised share of Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic, BIENZE B R 2 KRS T (8
extracted from its relevant management account, is as BHEEREEERB)WT :
follows:
2016 2015
—RE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBET T

Unrecognised share of profit (loss) of REER I E N F]
the associate for the year REEm A (EE) 320 (1,680)
Accumulated unrecognised share of Rt RHERE(
losses of the associate Bk A A& 1R (6,248) (6,568)
Xishui Jingiao Company BKEHBAA
2016 2015
—RE —E—hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBTIT
Current assets mEEE 19,710 N/A
@A
Non-current assets JEmENEE 68,494 N/A
i@ A
Current liabilities mENEE (49,158) N/A
i A
Non-current liabilities FnRBAE = N/A
T EA
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24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

24. RHELFIZHI(IR)

2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—hHF
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Total revenue BT S 34,071 N/A
N3 A

Profit for the year ANF 5 A 3,090 N/A
ANiE A

The Group's share of result of associate NEEFE(FBME AT 2 ¥4 1,544 N/A
N3 A

2016 2015

— N —T—hF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARET T

Net assets of associate Bt NR 2 FEE 39,046 N/A
T EA

Proportion of the Group's ownership AREERBE QRS EER 50% N/A
interest in associate pdlndy /]| T EA
19,523 N/A

TiERA

Goodwill EE 18,756 N/A
TiERA

The Group's share of net assets of AEBEEEEAT 38,279 N/A
associate FEE T E A

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group acquired
50% equity interests of Xishui Jingiao Company from third
parties at a total consideration of RMB36,735,000. Up to
31 March 2016, RMB20,000,000 was paid with the remaining
balance of RMB335,000 and RMB16,400,000 to be settled by
cash and issue of the Company's shares respectively. The
details were set out in the Company’s announcement dated
21 April 2015.

BE-_Z—XRE=A=+—HILFE
NEBE A BRE AR36,7350007T
BE=FWEBKEB AR Z250%K
E@ °© %@E_E*/\EEH E+*E| ’
AEEE S+ A R #20,000,0007T -
i 7l & 45 27 A R #6335,0007T & A R #&
16,400,000 # 5 BB BIR & K EE1TAR
NEREDE T T A o FBEEHRA
AFBHA-ZE—RAFNA-+—B=Z
NI
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25. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES

25. REIEIKRIA

2016 2015
—S—R¥F —ZET-RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARMBTIT

Unsecured long-term receivables R R B PE LR IR

— interest bearing at 9.6% per annum —REFFI.6%5T 2
(note a & b) (Ffrtakb) 5,138 54,359
— non-interest bearing (note b) — % 2 (MizEb) 82,674 =
87,812 54,359

Less: Long-term receivables due within B R —F AR ER R HE

one year (note b) WkIE (M9 3Eb) (27,006) =
60,806 54,359

Note a:

Note b:

The amount represents amount due from a former equity owner of
subsidiaries which is unsecured and interest bearing at a fixed rate
of 9.6% per annum. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the amount is not expected to be recovered within twelve months
from 31 March 2016 and 2015 and accordingly was classified as non-

current asset.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group entered into
debt assignment agreements (“Agreements”) with an independent
third party. Pursuant to the Agreements, the Group has agreed
to transfer an amount due from the former equity owner of
subsidiaries as mentioned above and an amount due from a non-
controlling equity owner of subsidiaries (note 26) (together referred
to the “Receivables”) of RMB53,168,000 and RMB41,590,000
respectively outstanding at Agreements date to an independent
third party for an aggregate consideration of RMB90,020,000.

According to the Agreements, 30% of the consideration need to
be repaid in June 2016 and included under current assets. The
remaining 70% of the consideration would be repaid within two
years from the Agreements date. The amounts are unsecured and
interest-free, and measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method at the borrowing rate of 6.31% per annum. The
difference between the amortised costs of the consideration
receivables and the carrying amount of the Receivables being
transferred are included under “other finance costs” as set out in
note 13.
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26. AMOUNT DUE FROM A NON- 26. EUs B E 2 B JF— R B
CONTROLLING EQUITY OWNER OF SREBEARE
SUBSIDIARIES/A SUBSIDIARY

2016 2015
—E—RE —F—RfF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBET T

Amount due from a non-controlling equity  FEUS KT B A 7] — 24 FEE g =5
owner of subsidiaries (note a) BAEAZRIE(MiEa) = 39,222

Amount due from a non-controlling equity & Ut — & B A 7] — 2 FE42A%

owner of a subsidiary (note b) A A2 ZIE(HiETb) 2,904 1,214

Note a: The amount at 31 March 2015 was unsecured and interest bearing fiz¥a: R-ZZE—RAFE=A=+—8  %ZFEAE
at 9.6% per annum. During the year, the Group entered into debt MR NIZER R 6% B c RAERE -
assignment agreements and pursuant to which, the amount was AREBFTEREERZ - B ZRE
transferred to an independent third party (see note 25). BEERT —EBIE =7 (RHFE25) -

Note b: The amount represents prepayment for purchase of liquefied natural fizxb : HEASEAREERIELRAXARRMINZE
gas and trade receivable, which aged within 30 days based on the NRREZERER  BXNEMS B
date of delivery of goods approximated the respective dates on which 30K A i B Be B 52 W 2= 2 /B B8 B A 4R
revenue was recognised. &
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27. DEFERRED TAXATION 27. BRIERIA
The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) UTRASERSFERRZEERT
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the HIBEE(BE)AREES) -
years.
Fair value

adjustment of
properties and

Accelerated intangible asset Temporary
tax  upon business  difference on
depreciation combination accruals Tax losses Total
RE A&
WRR
mERR ERREZ EiRAZ
& NFERE EREE REER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT

At 31 March 2014 RZZT-ME
ZR=1-H (12,773) (3,.274) 537 - (15,510)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss BB (3% )E A (3,356) 174 764 = (2,418)

Effect of change in tax rate hizxgg o8
)

(note 14) (FizE 14 3,347 = = = 3,347
At 31 March 2015 R-Z-HE

=R=t—-H (12,782) (3,100) 1,301 - (14,581)

(Charge) credit to profit or loss B8z (F15)zF A (460) 174 (287) 19,972 19,399
At 31 March 2016 RZB—1E

=R=t-H (13,242) (2,926) 1,014 19,972 4,818
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27.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statements of financial position, certain deferred taxation
assets and liabilities has been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred taxation balance for financial
reporting purposes:

27. BIERIA(KR)

REFGAMBRRBERME - ETE
ERBEEMBBCIFERE - LT R5
MH 2B MMIELRERIBERD
o

2016 2015

—E—R¥E —T—RF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETTT

Deferred tax assets IEAEF I8 E = 4,818 1,301
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFIEE E - (15,882)
4,818 (14,581)

Under the EIT law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to the profits earned by the PRC subsidiary amounting to
RMB98,859,000 (2015: RMB78,676,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised
tax losses of approximately RMB162,105,000 (2015:
RMB28,921,000), available for offset against the future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such
tax losses of approximately RMB133,144,000 as at 31 March
2016 (2015: nil). The Group has unrecognised tax losses
of approximately RMB28,961,000 (2015: RMB28,921,000).
Included in the tax losses are losses of approximately
RMB22,739,000 (2015: RMB15,790,000) that will expire within
five years from the end of the reporting period, other tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

BERBECEMERE AT NE
—A—HBi BPEWEBARREZ G
FETERZEE - BRI © 24
B 75 R 25 I A Bt A0 B BT B A =) BT BN iR
I FE 1 B B B = 58 A R #598,859,0007C
—T—hHF: AR¥T8,676,0007T)1E
HUEEFR B - AAEE A G EE
FRRF =M - BREfRRF RSN
SRR B R o

RIBEHR  ASREHEARFATE
R AR 162,105,000 (=2 —H
£ ANR#28,921,0007T) » A £ #5
RAERRF R ZE—RNF=ZA=+—
H BEEHEEEERZEMEGE
#INR#133,144,000T ( ZE— R 4F ¢
) TR - AEBEHEB RERTIE
BiE O A RE28,961,000 (== —H
F . AR¥28,921,0007T) ° T IEE1E
BIESRREHEREAFEANRE M ZEE
HANREE22739,000t(ZE—RF :
AR #15,790,0007T) © HaFRIEEE
A AfE 18 R (R HAth A8 o
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28. INVENTORIES 28. &

2016 2015
—E—R¥F —T—hEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFIT
Raw materials B 10,385 7,993
Spare parts and consumable B B Sm 7,758 10,125
Finished goods BURY G 8,038 27,650
26,181 45,768

29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 29. ES REMEBUIRER
2016 2015
—E—RTE —hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETFIT
Trade receivables B S EWBER 938,608 510,477
Bills receivables ENEZE 23,302 6,747
Other receivables H b i Ug BR X 25,032 20,892
Prepayments SELDEN 567,938 479,512
1,554,880 1,017,628
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29.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The Group generally requires prepayments made by
customers before delivery of goods or provision of services,
except for certain customers to which the Group allows an
average credit period of 30 to 90 days. The Group also allow
customers to settle the trade receivables before the end of
credit period or to make prepayments to the Group by bills
receivables.

Trade receivables arisen from oil and gas sales contracts
which are settled either by bills issued by banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies
and are receivable with an average credit period ranging
from seven days to six months after the date of delivery of
commodity to customers or by telegraphic transfer.

Included in the trade receivables is an amount of
RMB158,993,000 (2015: Nil) receivable from a company
named HERFIEM, arisen from the oil and gas sales
contracts. R5efEFIEM is a subsidiary of EMTZ 8RB R
A7) (Guangzhou Circle Energy Company Limited) (“Circle
Energy”), a company which Mr. Wang is a key management
personnel. As at 31 March 2016, the Group has prepayments
of Nil (2015: RMB217,000,000) to 52 FIER. The maximum
amount outstanding during the year ended 31 March 2016 was
RMB409,278,000 (2015: RMB217,000,000).

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the revenue recognition date:

29. BB R EMEUIRRR(1])

AEEERXERRERERB A —RFTE
BEFEMNRIE  HAREETFHEER
HI30E0RZETHEFRIN - AKHE
TAHEPR EENERIAEESE
YRR SRS A R M R R (R A SR B 4 L TR A

=+
e

AMPERARREER KN ZE HRUARK
TIAEBRREEFRARER TREEN
MBRTBEZREBSE  FHEEN
B EREE A RRAEEE BEFTL
BEXEANE -

E S EWRREERUREREMAERA
AERAHMERRXAREEANEEZR
1B A R#158,993,0007T (= E— R £ :
) R RPIEMARMNITFTERE
BRAR([ITZFRER)ZHBAR  mE
HERBTFHRRZIEEZEEEAER - R
T-XE=A=+—0  XEEYLKRA
ReRMERYNEAZE(ZE—5
£ . AR#¥217,000,0007T) - REZE=
E—RNEZA=+—HBIFE  HKE
BZRAEEB A ARL09,278,0007C
(ZZ—FF : AR%217,000,0007T) °

AT ARKGEERZ AR ZE B R
YRR BRER AT

2016 2015

—E—RF —E—RF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREFIT

Within 30 days 30BN 187,208 55,578
31 - 90 days 31£90H 2,435 249,857
91 - 180 days 91%2180H 733,548 201,104
Over 180 days 180H LA £ 15,417 3,938
938,608 510,477
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29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of bills receivables based on
the date of receipt of bills:

29. BB R EMEUIRRR(1])

AT R/RERNEBDREARZBEREZ
RRER DA

2016 2015

—E—REFE —E—hF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETIT

Within three months —@AAA 22,210 6,747
Three months to six months =@A=/~EA 1,092 -
23,302 6,747

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the credit quality of the trade receivable balances that are
neither past due nor impaired as at the end of the reporting
period is good as the repayment history of the debtors is
satisfactory.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balances are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB255,610,000 (2015: RMB197,873,000) which are past due
at 31 March 2016, for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss as the management considered the amounts
are still recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances. The amount were fully settled as at this
report date.
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29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired are as follows:

29. BB R EMEUIRRR(1])

B ERRELE SRR Z BRAR
DITET ¢

2016 2015

—E—R¥E —T—RF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREFTT

31 -180 days 31£180H 240,193 197,691
Over 180 days 180H LA £ 15,417 182
255,610 197,873

All trade receivables are assessed not to be impaired
individually and they are further assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. No impairment has been recognised on trade
receivables during both years. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

No impairment has been recognised on other receivables
during both years. The directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the other receivables are not impaired as
the amounts mainly represent value-added tax recoverable
and advances to staff which were fully utilised and settled
respectively subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

Transfer of financial assets

The followings were the Group's financial assets as at the end
of each reporting period that were transferred to banks or
suppliers by discounting or endorsing those bills receivables
on a full recourse basis. As the Group has not transferred the
significant risks and rewards relating to these bills receivables,
it continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the bills
receivables and the corresponding liabilities included in
secured borrowings or trade payables respectively. These
financial assets are carried at amortised cost in the Group's
consolidated statements of financial position.

P A B 5 MR 58 N & 1 B FHE R
B Aitgg— S HRFERE - K
18 £ 2 3 4 5t B 5 FE UK BR 7K e 52 RL
B AEEYERLZSEHTE TR
o
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BE - ARBEERR - HtbRUARX
W ERME - FSREKIAERE ARG
BERMREHARRES TS MBIL
BBREEIRTEIZBR -

BESHEE

AT R/ARERERERAREBILMAE
PHEREEEYRXEEZFRNRE
BEMEETRITIHEAZSREE
HRAREYEEZZEREREZE
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29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 29. 8 5 B H i BB W AR 5% (48 )
(Continued)
Transfer of financial assets (Continued) HEESHEE(E)
Bills receivable discounted or endorsed BHBAREEZRKRE
2016 2015
“ZE—REFE —E—hF
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBET T

Carrying amount of bills receivables from LA TN ALEWEREZ

— external customers BREE—-IINIRP 23,302 6,114
Carrying amount of trade and other B o5 REMENERZ

payables FRHEE (1,252) (6,114)
Carrying amount of bank borrowings IRITEEZERE (22,050) _

30. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 30. BB REATHRIE

2016 2015
—B—RF —F-hfF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Circle Energy (note a) LT eeR(Mista) 480 1,841
LEEE R ERBRAA] IEEEH e REREGRAF
(Jiangsu Runfu New Energy Development  ([VI&EE |) (KizEb)
Company Limited) (“JS Runfu “) (note b) - 1,082
480 2,923
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30. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES
(Continued)

The maximum amounts outstanding during the year are as

30. Bl BREALTRIF(IR)

REARRIKE Z HZASEOT

follow:
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—AF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TIXT ARETIT
Circle Energy JL = BEIR 1,841 33,808
JS Runfu LEREE 1,082 1,082

Note a: The amount represents prepayment for purchase of liquefied natural
gas and trade receivable, which aged within 30 days based on the
date of delivery of goods. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Note b: A company which Mr. Wang Jian, a brother of Mr. Wang, had equity
interest and control over it. On 3 April 2015, Mr Wang Jian has
transferred all his equity interests to an independent third party.
Accordingly, the amount outstanding at 31 March 2016 is included
under trade and other receivables. The amount is unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

FffsEa

M b :

HRSEARBERERRRM X F 2R
MR RRRE AT SRR R30H 2B 5
YRR - RS BEAEER - RERR
EREEE -

ST EAE B EREEBERER
BibEZ AT R-_TE—REMA=
B FRAEHAERESET 2B
F=F Al R=TB—AREFE=ZA=1+—
B ZBEHETAE S K EAEWGRIE -
ZAEERE - B8 RN EREEE -
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31.

32.

142 Yuan

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

As at 31 March 2015, the Group's short-term investments
mainly represented financial products issued by a bank in
the PRC, with an expected but not guaranteed return of
3.34% per annum, depending on the market price of its
underlying financial instruments, including listed debentures.
The financial products were designated at FVTPL on initial
recognition as they contained embedded derivatives that are
not closely related to the host contract. The directors of the
Company considered the fair value of the financial products
approximated to their principal amounts as at 31 March
2015 and the fair value of the embedded derivatives was
insignificant. The short-term investments has been redeemed
during the year.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
Bank balances carry interest at market rates with market rates
of 0.35% (2015: 0.35%) per annum, as at 31 March 2016 and
2015.

The pledged bank deposits carrying interest rates which
range from 2.50% to 3.08% (2015: 2.30% to 3.30%) per annum,
amounting to RMB279,915,000 (2015: RMB383,405,000) have
been pledged to secure bills payables repayable within six
months and RMB 10,000,000 (2015: nil) pledged bank deposits
have been pledged to secure bank borrowings which will be
released upon the settlement.
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33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

33. W5 & H fth FE £ AR &K

2016 2015
—g-XxE —T-IF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Trade payables B S ENERR 866,091 334,737
Bills payables FENEiE 912,130 605,700
Other payables HAth &£~ BR 5K 30,407 42,314
Other tax payables E e AiIE 17,721 10,840
Consideration payable (note 24) JERRE (B5E24) 16,735 -
Receipts in advance TR R R 16,220 95,825
Compensation payable FEAST B & 10,442 10,442
Payroll payables JEN T & 1,515 1,466

1,871,261 1,101,324

Trade payables arisen from oil and gas purchase contracts
which are granted by suppliers with an average credit period
ranging from seven days to six months after date of delivery,
and trade payables arisen from production and sales of LNG
which are granted by suppliers with an average credit period
ranging from 30 days to 90 days after the date of delivery.

Besides, certain suppliers will also require to have
prepayments received before the supply of materials.
The Group will arrange for certain of its prepayments or
settlement of trade payable by bills payables.

BRRAAREESHZE HEMNRR
Dt EEEMSERBSPREEAEEAEAT
E2FHEEREL - FERBEERIL
RARZE BEMNER T HEEIZRN
HHIE30E E90R &% 2 FHEE R
ﬁo

AN - BT HER IR S Z KRR R
FATHERFA R - AERBE R E
ETHENRIABRNREERE S RN
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33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

33. WA R E PR AR (48)

(Continued)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented, AT BET 25 BN BRI IS BRI %
based on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting period: FHEEIT 2RI DT :
2016 2015
—B—RF —T-RF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT T
Within 90 days 90HN 849,749 315,504
91 - 180 days 912180H 7,040 9,418
181 — 365 days 181%2365H 5,050 711
Over 1 year BiE—F 4,252 9,104
866,091 334,737
The following is an aged analysis of bills payables based on NI RIEEZBHET  BNERRE
the date of issue of bills: AT
2016 2015
—E—RFE —E—hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETTT
Within three months =@AR 655,490 371,500
Three months to six months =@AZE/NEA 256,640 234,200
912,130 605,700
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34. AMOUNT DUE TO ASSOCIATES 34. (BB A FIBRIE
2016 2015

—E-X§ —T-uf

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Amount due to associates AN NGIE ] 3,203 22,310
The amount represents payables for purchase of liquefied Z R IETE S B IR KA R R AR TS
natural gas and logistic service, which is aged within 30 days. Z BRI R30R Z BRI FRIE - R EHIAR
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on B RERERERER -
demand.
35. AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER 35. Bft—RBERKE
2016 2015
—EB—R¥F “T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETTT

Amount due to a shareholder FEfF— B AR R FIE - 6,105
The amount was unsecured, interest-free and fully repaid ZHRIEREER - RERERFARY
during the year. &L -

36. AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING 36. [EfI—RMIME AT —RIER

EQUITY OWNER OF A SUBSIDIARY BRESKEAEARER
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZT—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARET T

Non-controlling equity owner of a —EM B AR — IR

subsidiary HE A 10,000 =
The amount represents short-term advance which is A AER RS  RERX
unsecured, and interest bearing at 9.24% per annum with no 924%% 8 - HEEFEEEMR o

fixed repayment term.
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37. BANK BORROWINGS

37. RITHEE

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFTT
Bank borrowings repayable: EEEZRITEE
— Within 1 year —1FRN 131,282 648,895
— More than 1 year, but not exceeding 2 — BB 1FENBIE2F
years 32,000 10,000
— More than 2 years, but not exceeding5  —BiB2F B T BESF
years 17,000 30,000
— More than 5 years —5FE L £ 7,000 11,000
187,282 699,895
Less: Amount due within one year and B R—FE AR B RGIARE)
shown under current liabilities E{fZH’AIE\ (131,282) (648,895)
Amount repayable after one year AR—F é:EE&ﬁIJ)\;lm@J
and shown under non-current liabilities E%Z 56,000 51,000
Analysed as: DA
Secured B 167,282 674,895
Unsecured A 1 20,000 25,000
187,282 699,895
The bank borrowings due for repayment are classified based E'J%EEEZ?ETTFEE&WE%E N
on the scheduled repayment dates as set out in the relevant EHEEEEASNSE REHREH

loan agreements. The secured bank loans as at end of each
reporting period were secured by the Group’s assets and
guaranteed by related parties as set out in notes 44 and 46,

respectively.
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37. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The ranges of effective interest rates per annum (which are
also equal to contractual interest rates) on the Group’s bank
borrowings are as follows:

37. BITEE(HE)

AEBZRITEEZERFNE(IRE
BHFERER) ZBEMT

2016
—EB—REF

Fixed-rate bank borrowings

SIRTT
VERTT

TE 2
sz

]]]I:l: mh

M

Floating-rate bank borrowings

3.73% - 7.20%
5.34% - 6.60%

2.50% — 7.84%
6.00% — 6.78%

Floating-rate borrowings amounted to RMB88,000,000 and
RMB102,000,000 at 31 March 2016, and 2015, respectively.
The borrowings are arranged at the interest rate based on
benchmark interest rate from the People’s Bank of China
(“Benchmark Rate") plus, if applicable, a premium and expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

As at the end of each reporting periods, the secured bank
borrowings included bills receivables transferred to banks and
third parties by discounting or endorsing those bills receivables
on a full recourse basis. As the Group has not transferred the
significant risks and rewards relating to these bills receivables,
it continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the bills
receivables and the corresponding liabilities included in
secured bank borrowings (see note 29 for details).

Most of the bank borrowings of the Group are denominated
in RMB. The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency
denominated bank borrowings of RMB152,895,000 was
denominated in USD as at 31 March 2015. No foreign currency
denominated bank borrowings as at 31 March 2016.

38. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

The Group leased certain of its vehicles under finance leases.
The lease term is ranging from three years to five years.
Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance leases
are 6.9% (2015: 5.76%-7.56%) per annum. The interest rates
are fixed at respective contract dates. These leases have
terms of renewal or purchase options that the Group has the
ability to continue the lease for a secondary period at a rent or
purchase at a consideration that is substantially lower than the
market value.

38.

RZE—RER_FE—RHF=A=1+—
B Z2EfEES R AARES8,000,000
7T & AR #102,000,0007 ° % EEE

ZHRRZFAREARRITRMZ E%E
AMER(TEERNE ) E(ER ) HE

RER  EAKEHRRERENERE
REREHRR - BERRTEERRERE
WEE  ZFERREBECHEEERE

HEZUBRABEZNAERTRITR
F=77 c ARAKBARBZZSRER
Bz REERRRNOR - WEEES
EWRE 2 2 HREENMERA GHER
REBRRTEE B RME29) -

REBZAHEDRITEEAARE ST
B -R—_ZE—RAF=ZA=+—H' ' &
EENIEFEZRTEEARE
152,895,000 7T 2 BR M 8 J) A = JT &F
B RN-B—NE=ZA=+—HILEMN
HNESHERSRITEE -

AREFREREROBESHES TEH -
BONTF=Z=RF - 2 EHLFE
ZHRBNR AFFIU(—E—RF :
5.76%%E7.56%) - ZEFEREELH
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38. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 38. MEHVKIE (&)

(Continued)
The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by NEE 7 ERLAETIA T A S E
the lessor’s charge over the abovementioned leased assets MG EE 2 Fa EE AR (R 20 %
(see notes 20 and 44). 44) o
Minimum Present value of
lease minimum lease
payments payments
RERS REBAEZHE
2016 2015 2016 2015

ZE—RE —ET—HF ZB—RE —_ZT—I1F
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETT AR®TE ARETT

Amount payable under MERARSETZ

finance leases FETRIA
Within one year —&FR 1,174 6,104 1,115 5,535
Later than one year and —FRETBBRF
not later than two years - 1,462 - 1,398
1,174 7,566 1,115 6,933
Less: future finance charges  Jil @ REREE R X (59) (633) N/A N/A
FEHR ANiE A
Present value of minimum xEHEZEE 1,115 6,933 1,115 6,933
lease payments
Less: Amounts due for o ERT—{EANE
settlement within twelve EzE55EGIAR
months (shown under FEE)
current liabilities) (1,115) (5,535)
Amounts due for settlement  BR+—{@A&EE2
after twelve months g - 1,398

148 Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited JT=¥ATIEMA R A A
Annual Report 2016 R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ST e IS ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z-—R"F=-A=1T—HLFE

39. SHARE CAPITAL 39. &
THE COMPANY KL E]
Nominal
value
per Number of
share shares Amount
SEREE BipEHE &8
HK$ HK$'000
BT FET
Authorised: VATE
As at 1 April 2014, RZZT—MNFMA—H -
31 March 2015 —E-RF=A=1+—BK=
and 31 March 2016 E—RNF=HA=+—H 0.1 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE :
As at 1 April 2014 R-ZE—NFMA—H 0.1 1,019,592,858 101,959
Issue of Consideration Shares ZX{T{(ERRH 0.1  4,283,209,057 428,321
As at 31 March 2015 R-_ZE—HRF=A=+—H 0.1 5,302,801,9215 530,280
Issue of shares BT 0.1 380,833,333 38,083
At 31 March 2016 R-_ZE—XRF=A=+—H 0.1 5,683,635,248 568,363
Analysed for reporting HEMABMIEL Z DI -

purposes as:

RMB’000

AREFIT

At 31 March 2016 R-_ZE—XRF=A=+—H 475,031
At 31 March 2015 R-_ZE—RF=A=+—H 443,282
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39.

40.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

THE COMPANY (Continued)

On 21 September 2015, the Company entered into three
separate subscription agreements with the subscribers.
Under the subscription agreement, a total of 380,833,333
subscription shares will be allotted and issued by the
Company at the subscription price of HK$0.60 per
subscription share. The aggregate subscription price for
all the subscription shares is approximately HK$228.5
million (equivalent to RMB190,495,000). The subscription of
300,000,000 subscription shares completed on 5 October
2015 and 300,000,000 subscription shares were allotted and
issued accordingly. The remaining two subscriptions of total
80,833,333 subscription shares completed on 12 October
2015 and 80,833,333 subscription shares were allot ted and
issued accordingly. Upon completion of the subscription
agreements, the issued share capital of the Company is
enlarged from 5,302,801,915 shares to 5,683,635,248 shares.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 21 September 2015, 6 October 2015 and 9 October 2015,
the Company entered into several subscription agreements
with Kylin Offshore Engineering Pte Ltd (the “Subscriber”) for
the subscription of a convertible bond in the principal amount
of US$10,000,000 (“Convertible Bond") (collectively refer to as
“"CB Agreements”).

Subscriber agreed to subscribe the convertible bond in the
principle amount of US$10,000,000, and the subscription
money in the total sum of US$10,000,000 was paid on
26 October 2015.
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40.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The Convertible Bond can be converted into ordinary shares
of the Company at HK$0.65 per share, subject to the fixed
exchange rate of HK$7.7495 to US$1.0000, and the anti-
dilutive adjustments anytime from 22 October 2015 (the issue
date) to the fifth business day prior to the 16 October 2017
(the "Maturity Date”). The Subscriber shall have the rights to
convert the whole or part of the outstanding principal amount
of the Convertible Bond during the conversion period. The
coupon rate is 6% per annum and is payable quarterly on
31 March, 30 June, 30 September and 31 December. Unless
previously converted or cancelled, all convertible bond should
be redeemed at 100% of principle amount, and settled in US$
on the Maturity Date. There is no early redemption option by
the Subscriber. During the year ended 31 March 2016, there is
no conversion exercised.

The Convertible Bond contains two components for
accounting purposes: a liability component and an
embedded derivative component being the conversion
options derivatives. The effective interest rate of the liability
component is 16.64% per annum. The fair value of the
liability component at the date of issue was calculated using
discounted cash flow methodology.

40. Al B {R 55 (48)

A RS (5 55 Al # T R 0.6578 T8 4R A 7K
RNaElz iR - AT 74953 T K
1.0000E T2 EEERETIRE - BA
B —hAFT+AZ+=ZHETH)E
—E—tE+A+B(EEA DS
T 2 B AR BE R 1 R E 2 o
REIRERE - RIEAGRERE PRI
DARREFHAREEASTE - ZEF
BEXRAE6% BZAR=ZA=+—H X~
A=+H- - hA=+HER+=ZA=+—
BIZZY - BrLp BB SRR
SN - FTE AT RE ST E R BB B 1R AR
SR Z100%EE - WAETHEE - R
BALRIREELHE  BE_F—~
F=ZRA=+—HIEFE  WEETEM
EE i o

REFHEMNHE @ TRIREFBIEARE
MR AXPTE T B (AR EITETA)
WEERD - BEIHNONERFINER
16.64% - MEETHE - AEHHHA
FETIZMRIB S REAE ©
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40. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The movement of the liability component of the Convertible
Bonds for the year are set out as below:

40. TTRBE R % (48)

AEFABBRES BB OEDHHT
mE

2016 2015
—E—-R¥E S TS
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARET T

Liability component RRBIE
Carrying amount at the beginning FYRAEE

of the year = =
Issue of Convertible Bond BITR R ES 53,095 -
Effective interest charged to profit R8I K BB F X

or loss (note 13) (PfFEE13) 3,764 -
Interest paid BERFE (1,709) -
Exchange loss I X &8 904 -
Carrying amount at the end of the year FRIEEE 56,054 _

41. EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES

The US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$77,495,000 or
RMB63,492,000) Convertible Bond as set out in note
40 contains two components, a liability element of
HK$64,805,000 (equivalent to RMB53,095,000) at initial
recognition (see note 40) and embedded derivative element
attributable to the conversion option of HK$22,741,000
(equivalent to RMB18,632,000) resulted in a fair value loss
of HK$10,051,000 (equivalent to RMB8,235,000) on initial
recognition.

The conversion option embedded in the instrument
is presented as derivative financial instrument in the
consolidated statement of financial position and are
measured at fair value subsequent to initial recognition with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value gain recognised in the profit or loss as a result of the
changes in fair value amounted to HK$7,210,000 (equivalent to
RMB5,872,000).
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41. RAXTTETR

BT % 40 FfT & 10,000,000 3= 7t ( #8 &
77,495,000 /& 7T 3k A R ¥ 63,492,000
L) B ESFBRERVIEERE(R
H$5E40)64,805,0007% 7T (FHE R A R
53,095,0007T) 2 & f& & fE(522,741,000
Bt (FEE N ARE18,632,0007T ) %
BZBRARITET EMELD © BUFER Y]
IR FE TR EE AR A T B E518 10,051,000
Jo(FEE R AR #8,235,0007T) °

T EMI# Z R TR 4R & B IS AR %
REFAMTESRMTE YRR
BN T EFE  BRATFEEHNIE
AR - AR AFEEB)E7,210,000
Bt (HE N ARKS,872,000T) @ A
FEKSNEZENER o
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41. EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES (Continued)

The movement of the option component of the Convertible

41. RARGTE T R ()
AN [ AT R R A SR ARAE S5 ) B BB

Bonds for the year are set out as below: FIER
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZT—hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARETTT

Embedded derivative component BRARGTET ABH

Fair value at the beginning of the year FHAFE - =
Issue of Convertible Bond BAITRAIRIR B 18,632 =
Gain on fair value change during the year FRAFEZH) U (5,872) -
Exchange loss HE 5 g8 181 =
Fair value at the end of the year FRAFE 12,941 =

The fair values of the embedded derivatives at 22 October
2015 (the issue date) and 31 March 2016 was determined
by reference to a valuation conducted by an independent

valuers using Binomial Option Pricing Model. The inputs and
methodology used for the calculation of the fair values of the
embedded derivatives were as follows:

Convertible Bond

R-ZE—FE+A=-+=-B((ETHH)
E_E—RE=A=1+—HBHBRARST

ETARFETES

EB N EMRA

“EAHREEEAETHMERERE
AERARITET AN A FEMAHE

BITSEMT -

22 October 2015

31 March 2016

—Z-0F —EB—ANF

CIE: Y3 ¢ +A=Z+=H =A=+—8H
Share price & (& HK$0.72 HK$0.62
0.72%7T 0.62% 7T

Risk-free rate 2 B b 0.279% 0.426%
Time to maturity HAMR 2.00 years 1.56 years
2.005 1.56%F

Dividend yield iR B 0% 0%
Volatility B ED 42.20% 47.96%
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42. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. B LFRH
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material FEEAHERERZHZERB LA
non-controlling interests FiF
Proportion of equity (Loss) profit
interest held by non- allocated to Accumulated
controlling equity non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary owners interests interests
MELT&E FERESHBARE SEFHEEIRESZ Rt R
4 §-1:4: 0] (&1R)&% o
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE 2R ZZ-REFE ZT-hF ZE-RE ZT—RE

RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB’'000  RMB'000
ARBTLT ARMTLT ARBTRE AR®TRT

Xingxing Energy E2fR 31.0% 31.0% (21,057) 12,337 75,406 96,773
Huixin Energy fE&ae R 31.0% 31.0% (15,356) (3,612) (13,027) 2,329
Huaheng Energy ES R 50.3% 50.3% 9,357 6,027 38,401 32,062
Individually immaterial BB &BEAEKX

subsidiaries with BB

non-controlling =B AR N/A N/A

interests &R TER (2,641) (1,458) 4,552 10,638

(29,697) 13,294 105,332 141,802
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42. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. B AT EHE (#])
(Continued)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material BEEAHEZERER ZHEZENE L F
non-controlling interests (Continued) 15 (&)
Summarised financial information represents amounts before TXEHTIER BRI S 2 AN
intragroup eliminations in respect of each of the Group's ERBRARZHEEREE - AEER
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests are ERIREH AT 2 £ %8 -

set out below.

Xingxing Energy: EEBR :
2016 2015
—E—REFE —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARET T

Current assets mEEE 277,873 348,105
Non-current assets FRBEE 269,142 297,291
Current liabilities mEaE (303,511) (330,798)
Non-current liabilities FERBEB (258) (2,426)
Equity attributable to owners of KARHEA AE(EERS

the Company 167,840 215,399
Non-controlling interests IR A 75,406 96,773
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42. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. IBATIEHE ()

(Continued)
Xingxing Energy: (Continued)

EERR - (#)

2016 2015

—EB—RE —E—F4E

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥®TR AREEFIT

Revenue Wz 365,153 647,345

Finance costs B & AR (2,119) (9,847)

Other expenses and other income H bR REMUA 5,327 5,344

(Loss) profit and total comprehensive FE(EE)RMEEE

(expense) income for the year ()W A% (67,926) 39,797

Dividend BZ B 1,000 —
(Loss) profit attributable to: AR AL REMh (18 ) a7

Owners of the Company PN/NCIEZ ZEDN (46,869) 27,460

Non-controlling interests By (21,057) 12,337
Net cash (used in) from operating activities #A&&EK(FAFE)FBZIRE

R (180,291) 143,577

Net cash from (used in) investing activities & & EB TS (FTiE) IR & 548 49,614 (91,125)

Net cash from (used in) financing activities B & /EBFTS (FTFE)IR & 558 127,347 (56,152)

Net cash outflow WEFmHFE (3,330) (3,700)
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42. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

42. [fB TR HE (1#])

(Continued)
Huixin Energy: EZER :
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—R4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT ARETT
Current assets MENEE 133,220 98,733
Non-current assets EmBEE 390,805 421,293
Current liabilities Dok JN=NE (562,865) (499,725)
Non-current liabilities ErRHAaE (3,182) (12,782)
Equity attributable to owners of RAREE ANEIEER
the Company (28,995) 5,190
Non-controlling interests IR (13,027) 2,329
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42. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Huixin Energy: (Continued)

42. B AT RH(E)

EZFER . (F)

2016 2015
—E—XEFE —ZT—AF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT
Revenue W25 665,583 397,710
Finance costs Bh& Ak 2N (11,025) (42,711)
Other expenses and other income H 4 A S R E At YA 2,419 1,132
Loss and total comprehensive expense FEBEMEHERY B
for the year (49,541) (11,643)
Loss attributable to: AT ALEIGERE
Owners of the Company VNN ZS DN (34,184) (8,031)
Non-controlling interests SRR (15,356) (3,612)
Net cash (used in) from operating activities #&&Z2EME(FIFE)FTBZRE
R (30,104) 214,169
Net cash (used in) from investing activities & & EE) (FT#E) 11538 & 558 (54,054) 153,502
Net cash from (used in) financing activities B & EB TS (FTiE)IR & F58 84,428 (404,535)
Net cash inflow (outflow) RWERACRL ) F5E 270 (36,864)
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42. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

42. [fB TR HE (1#])

(Continued)
Huaheng Energy: EDER
2016 2015
ZE—REF — TR
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARBTIT
Current assets MENEE 41,048 69,357
Non-current assets ERBNE E 155,781 152,867
Current liabilities mMEEE (64,502) (107,497)
Non-current liabilities FERBAaE (56,000) (51,000)
Equity attributable to owners of RAREE ANEIEER
the Company 37,926 31,665
Non-controlling interests IR 38,401 32,062
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42. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Huaheng Energy: (Continued)

2016 2015
—Z—RE —E—hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥®TR AREEFIT
Revenue W25 187,574 233,653
Finance costs B & AR (5,244) (5,261)
Other expenses and other income Hi s REMUTA 427 798
Profit and total comprehensive income FE R MEEW AL
for the year 18,600 11,979
Dividend @SN 6,000 4,000
Profit attributable to: AT ALEMGRF
Owners of the Company AN/NETEZ= DN 9,243 5,952
Non-controlling interests JEIE IR RS 9,357 6,027
Net cash used in operating activities K TSR 2 & 558 (41,288) (38,752)
Net cash from investing activities B ERE SIS R5E 17,839 12,745
Net cash from financing activities mMEEEAEIRE TR 13,547 25,931
Net cash outflow REMLFEE (9,902) (76)

160 Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited JT=¥AFIER A R A A
Annual Report 2016 R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ST e IS ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z-—REZA=1+—HLFE

43. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 43. iRKTEFIETEI

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustee.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Company contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution
is matched by employees but subject to a maximum amount
of HKD1,250 (equivalent to RMB992) per person per month
prior to June 2014 and revised to HKD1,500 (equivalent to
RMB1,189) per month for each employee thereafter, which is
matched by employee. In addition, the Group’s contribution
to a state-managed retirement benefit scheme in the PRC
are expensed as fall due while the state government in the
PRC undertakes to assume the retirement benefit obligations
of all existing and future retirees of the qualified staff in the
PRC. The Group is required to contribute certain percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the profit or loss
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represents contributions payable to
the schemes by the Group at the rates specified in the rules of
the schemes.

AEBESEMANTEZAERERR
VigtEERTEl o FTEICEETIREEA
BEHZzESRE  BAKECZEEDH
BRIE o

NARARESFTEIK B TERNERE
BERATENAZ5% (BB IMEL S5EHE
) R_E—NFENARAEBAZA
=% 1,250 T (FHE R ARE9927T) -
H&ET AT AT A1,5008 T (HER
AR¥1,1897L) BB IMEL SHEH
R o AN - NEE T BB E K2
2 MRTIREAERSIERS - M R
FEFEAEERERARNTRZE
BEREKES ZREIEH - AEEER
TE KA Z &3 5E bt 2 R MR IR EFIET
BIHF - UABIRHEES -

RiraBRaMEMEERARR 285
RRHIBR 2 BRIKRE A AR AN 5 B3R AT
EIREZ B ELL RS 2 ] -
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44. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 44. REEH
The following assets were pledged at end of each reporting TMEENRSREERE FEMS 1A
period as collaterals for certain banking facilities granted to AREBERE THRTRE ZKAR :
the Group:
2016 2015
“ZE—REF —E—hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBET T

Property, plant and equipment held under RIBERIEHLIEE 2 WE -

finance leases R E K& 7.423 12,101
Other property, plant and equipment HiE - B NLRE 552,517 634,053
Land use rights 4 b {sE PR 22,294 23,230
Pledged bank deposits EEMIRITIFR 289,915 383,405

872,149 1,052,789
As at the end of each reporting period, equity interests in RERER ’_%:FW}%’D\ETZ%%&
certain subsidiaries were pledged to banks to secure loan ﬁ_ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ ERASEREECE
facilities granted to the Group. TEE 2B o
45. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 45. AR AR H
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) EEHERE
The Group as lessee FREESERBA
2016 2015
—EB—RE —E—hfF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Minimum lease payments paid under RFERENZEREEHL
operating leases for its premises during &K &
the year 2,787 2,035
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45. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
(Continued)
(a) Operating lease commitments (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitment for future minimum lease payment under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as

45. iERBAEA(1])

(a)

REHERE(H

FREEBEEAA ()
RBEHR - AEERE AR
HEEHORNZARRERS
AEZBBFERAT

follows:
2016 2015
—E—-RE —ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBTFIT
Within one year —F R 1,140 1,611
In the second to fifth years inclusive MEZRF  BIEEEMRF 1,760 2,636
Over five years AFLE 398 300
3,298 4,547

Operating lease payments represented rental payable
by the Group for certain office premises. Leases were
negotiated for an average term of one to two years.

b)  Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group issued
financial guarantee to a bank in respect of a bank
loan obtained by an associate of RMB60,000,000,
representing the amount that could be required to be
paid if the guarantee was called upon in entirety by the
bank. In determining whether financial liabilities should
be recognised in respect of the financial guarantee
contract, the Directors of the Company exercise
judgment in evaluation of the probability of resources
outflow that will be required and the assessment of
whether a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. In the opinion of the Directors of
the Company, the fair value of the financial guarantee
contract is insignificant at initial recognition and the
Directors consider that the possibility of the default
of the associate involved is remote, accordingly,
no value has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at the end of reporting
period. Should the actual outcome be different from
expected, provision for losses will be recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

b)

REMEFRBEASEE T
REMFERNZEE - HODKE
BEREN - FHERR—E/MF -

HAREE
RZE—ARER_FT—AF=A
=+—H AEEHRBEQRAT
7 A R # 60,000,000 7T R 17 & X
m—RESRITEE THEER @
Ze B A MEREEITREE
WESZHE  RNETREHER
ERAEANERSHEER AR
BIEEELHE - UEFREE
BRE T REME R EEE DA ES
BEL A A - ARAESER
B RBREHER EREREGD
MAFERVEERET RS
X BEEERAFEBREAAE
W REMEER - Ft - WER
RE MBI RERETMEE -
HEREREBHER - BERE
EE R AR A SRR FER o
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BHE—

46.

T-RFZA=t—HILFE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
OTHER DISCLOSURES

46. EREALIZ AR EMIKE

Balances with related parties are stated in the consolidated BAEE AT Z &8 25 0548 %GR
statements of financial position and the related notes. Sk R AR EE -
Save as disclosed in respective notes above, the Group had B A ABREAMI IR EE N AEEZE
the following transactions with related parties: BEANLTRZ0T :
2016 2015
—B—R%F —T—hF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
a) Sales of LNG to an associate a) (—HEHEBATFHERLLER
AR
— Jiu An Xi Shun Logistics —NZEIBYR 1,585 8,332
b) Sales of LNG to related parties b) MBEREALTHEREXAR
— Circle Energy - L REIR 32,661 1,088
-RERFIEM - REEPIER 86 24,721
—JS Runfu - IEEE = 23,824
c) Sales of oil and gas contract o) HERHRXARREN
—REZERPIE R - RERMER 725,963 -
— Circle Energy (Hong Kong) - L7 RR(BFE)ERAF
Co., Limited (note) (B5E) 15,597 =
— Circle Energy - TLFREIR 5,481 10,507
d) Purchase of LNG from a related party d) MEREALTHEERILERR
_E IR PYE - RERMER 39,646 -
— Circle Energy - JTTF BEIR 3,290 5,621
e) Purchase of LNG from an associate e) M—RIBEATFEERIL
P33
— Guiran Pipeline Company - BEREBAT] 135,989 88,620
f) Purchase of oil and gas contract fIBEAHMRXAREN
-RERFME/K - RERMER 275,655 -
— Circle Energy (Hong Kong) - TFRR(BB)BRAF]
Co., Limited (note) (MIaE) 76,036 1,013,064
g) Interest income from a related party g) KEBREALTZFIBIA
- R PTER - REERMEmR 12,838 -
— Circle Energy - LT REIR = 2,304
Note:  The company is a subsidiary of Circle Energy. Mzt ARARRTTFRBRZMEAR -
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
OTHER DISCLOSURES (Continued)

h) Guarantee given by related party in respect of bank

(%)

46. FRAEALTZ SR EKE

h) FREATHRFKREESZET

borrowings and banking facilities granted to the EBERRBRITHEFHZEZE
Group
2016 2015
—EB—-R¥F “T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
— Mr. Wang — "Eoo s 900,000 700,000

i) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of members of key management of
the Group other than the directors and chief executive of

i) EEEBARZHM

FEBFTEEREKE (ARA
ZEBERITHABERIN) 2 FE M

the Company during the year are as follows: ST
2016 2015
—E—R¥F —T—hEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Compensation of key management FTEEIEAE ZH M
personnel
Basic salaries and allowance BEARF & KRR 2,168 2,093
Contributions to retirement benefits RRB GBI
schemes 296 161
2,464 2,254

165



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

MRE A MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z—REZA=1+—HLFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of

47. FLFIMBRAER

R|EHRR » AR ZH BN HREH

the reporting period is summarised as follows: L (U N
2016 2015
—2—R¥F —T—AF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TTT ARETIT
Non-current assets EMBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR 212 E 4,078,437 4,057,897
Amount due from a subsidiary JE Wy — R BT /BB 2 R 3k IR 290,055 56,877
4,368,492 4,114,774
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables H i pE U BR 53X 39 3
Bank balances and cash RITEFENMRS 731 203
770 242
Current liabilities mEE &

Other payables H fth FE SRR K 638 355
Net current assets (liabilities) mEEE(RARE)FHE 132 (113)
Total assets less current liabilities REERREEE 4,368,624 4,114,661
Capital and reserves IR K

Share capital A% 2R 475,031 443,282

Reserves (note 48) i (5E48) 3,824,598 3,671,379
Total equity W ABER 4,299,629 4,114,661
Non-current liabilities EMBEE

Convertible bond AR E S 56,054 =

Embedded derivatives BRARSTETER 12,941 -

68,995 -
4,368,624 4,114,661
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48. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

49.

48. X F R

Share Other Translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
B &R Hfth Gt 1853 Gt 0 RitER ot
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT AR%®TT ARETRT
(note)
CiEd)
At 31 March 2014 RZZ—MmE=A
=+—H 160,816 62,921 (178,113) (84,594) (38,970)
Loss and total comprehensive AEEERREA
expense for the year X a5 - - - (1,266) (1,266)
Issue of Consideration Shares BIIRERD 3,711,615 = = = 3,711,615
At 31 March 2015 RZE-R5=A
=+—H 3,872,431 62,921 (178,113) (85,860) 3,671,379
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEBEREE
expense for the year gL - - - (5,527) (5,527)
Issue of shares BTk 158,746 = = = 158,746
At 31 March 2016 RZZ—1"%=HA
=+—H 4,031,177 62,921 (178,113) (91,387) 3,824,598

Note: The other reserve represented the credit arising from the capital
reduction where the par value of each existing share was reduced from
RMBO0.10 to RMBO0.01 by the cancellation of RMB0.09 of the paid-up

capital on each existing share in prior years.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the banks
directly received the contractually entitled cash flows
of RMB71,589,000 upon maturity of the discounted bills
receivables from the Group’s debtors as settlement of the

related bank borrowings of the Group.

MicE :  EMbREEHRIRAEDRATEE ZERE © K
AHRE B UL AT FE SRR AR 25
RIRAFHARK0.09T - BRIAF RS
ZHEERARK0I0TTHIRE ARK0.01
T o

49. EXFREXH
RBE-F-—AF=A=+—Bit#F
B - SRITRB IR S B e B )
REE T EHAMBEOREFAZR
emERARET1,589,0007T  ERA
EE 2 EMRITEEZAH -

167



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ST e IS ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z—REZA=1+—HLFE

50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 50. M/ A FFETE
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2016 and ARBIRZZFE—RNERZT-—HF=H
2015 are as follows: =t HZHBRBFBEOT :

Percentage of nominal

Nominal value of value of issued share
Place of issued ordinary capital/registered
incorporation/  Place of share/ registered capital held by the
Name of subsidiary registration operation capital Company Principal activities
BRI/ ERfTHER /2R  FLAREERORET/
HELREE i3 EEHE BFmE EMEFEECERL EFERE
2016 2015

Z8-AE -5

Ying Luen International Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$240,000,000 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding and oil
Investment Limited* contracts trading

BREREARRAA B & 240,000,000 ¢ 100.0%  1000% REZBRRAMEHEE

Union Honor Limited* BVI BVI HK$464,332,742 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding

BREBAR" EERAEE  EEBRAES 464,332,742 100.0% 100.0% RAZR

BMTTRABRAF PRC PRC RMB351,597,000 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding and
(note b) sales of liquefied natural

gas

BMTFMRARA R e G AR#351,597,0007C 100.0%  1000% REERRRERARHE
(Rt&tb)

SELAMEZLRARAR  PRC PRC RMB120,000,000 69.0% 69.0%  Production and sale of
Xingxing Energy liquefied natural gas

IASETRERRRERAR  PE PE AR #120,000,0007C 69.0% 69.0% AERHFERILAAR
EERR

EMmERERARLT" PRC PRC RMB70,000,000 69.0% 69.0%  Production and sale of
Huixin Energy liquefied natural gas

EMmERERARL T RE HE AR 70,000,007 69.0% 69.0% EERHEERILAAR
ERER

BEMEFHREEERAT  PRC PRC RMB40,000,000 49.7% 49.7%  Sale of piped gas
Huaheng Energy (note a)

EMNESHRREBRRAR  HE T A #40,000,0007 49.7% 49.7% HEEEXRR
EFHR GE)
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50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Nominal value of

Percentage of nominal
value of issued share

50. [ B AT (48)

Place of issued ordinary capital/registered
incorporation/  Place of share/ registered capital held by the
Name of subsidiary registration operation capital Company Principal activities
BRI/ ERTHER /#R  FLRRACRORET/
HELFEE M EEnE R¥EE EMRsEEZESL  FERE
2016 2015
—Z-RE —T-1f
AEFEMAAREARR  PRC PRC RMB26,700,000 57.3% 51.0%  Vehicle gas refuelling
(2015: RMB30,000,000) stations and sale of
liquefied natural gas
HERRMREREMARE & E AE#26,700,0007 57.3% 51.0% REMRMRHEE
(ZZ2-1F: AR RIERAR
30,000,0007T)
ENTERMTERA T PRC PRC RMB10,000,000 69.0% 69.0%  Production and sale of
liquefied natural gas
ENTESMRERA A i Gk AE#10,000,0007 69.0% 09.0% AERHERIAAR
EMETRERRAR PRC PRC RMB22,800,000 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
EMETRERRAR HE G AR%22,800,0007C 100.0%  1000% REER
Fully World Limited* Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100.0% 100.0%  OQil trading
SERRAF 80 & (i 100.0%  1000% FAHES
Firmwill Investments Limited BV BVI US$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
BRRABRAH RBRARE  RERLES 1% 100.0% 1000% &EER
EMNEERmHEARAG  PRC PRC 1S§990,000 100.0% 100.0%  Oil and gas trading
(note b)
ENEERRBERRAR & i 990,000% 7 100.0% 1000% RARAAEES
(Fitztb)
Colourful Rite Limited* BVI BVI US$10,000 100.0% - Investment holding
YVERRAF ABRAEE  RERKES 10,000%70 100.0% - RABRK

*

They are subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company.

* ZERAR/ARREEFEZHEA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ST e IS ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z—REZA=1+—HLFE

50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 50. fHB L FIF1R (&)

(Continued)

Notes: P& -

(a) Pursuant to a supplementary agreement entered between the Group (@) HRARAS &R E R ——%+-_HA=-tNH
and a 50% equity owner of Huaheng Energy on 28 December 2012, the HEZ R — %SO%% =A A ZBETL
equity owner has committed to follow the voting direction and decision Z%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ ZAEE R A AGERBR
of the Group on shareholders’ meeting and board of directors’ meeting AEREFEEE EBAKE KRS
except for certain special resolution relating to increase or reduction of RNEORE - HEBRE IO D EMAER -
registered capital, merger or spinoff, change of legal form, dismissal or BHKDI - BERARZAELA - BE
liquidation and amendments to memorandum and articles of association HBHARBAIEFRRAEREZAE
of Huaheng Energy. ZHFRIRB RN ©
As such, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group it - AAFREERR - AREDES
has obtained control over Huaheng Energy and has accounted for TR PR - A +AVE/FBZZ’K%.
Huaheng Energy as a subsidiary of the Group. 1) NCINE R

(b) The subsidiaries are set up as wholly-owned foreign investment (b) ZEME R R Ty B S RSN
enterprise registered in the PRC. 2ERERE -

(c) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at 31 March () BEMBARAEAR-_FT—~"E=A
2016 or at any time during the year. =t+—~8 IE@$EEEHE¢ BINRERZ

ERERE
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Financial Summary of Five Years

HFEPHHE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z-—R"F=-A=1T—HLFE

Year ended 31 March
B8FE=HA=1+—HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-RE _T-HF —T-WmF —_T-=%F —T—_F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RESULTS iR
Turnover e 6,841,169 6,440,317 9,991,396  57246,314 1,643,717
(Loss) profit before tax MR A AT (B8 ) %A (6,086) 29,418 227,477 28,220 102,949
Income tax (expense) credit PS4 (B ) % (13,935) 3,127 (59,290) (11,870) (227)
(Loss) profit for the year FEEZ(EE)EN (20,021) 32,545 168,187 16,350 102,722
At 31 March
BR=A=+—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Ze-RE —_T-HF —T-WmF —_T-=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES PERA(S
Total assets B E 3,082,805 2,619,242 3,756,663 2,488,680 273,302
Total liabilities we s (2,204,205) (1,904,760) (3,072,068) (1,927,680)  (198,737)
Net assets FEE 878,600 714,482 684,595 561,000 74,565
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